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Directors’ Report
EEEWHEE
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The Directors have pleasure in presenting their annual report and the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively,
the “Group”) for the year ended 31 December 2020.

Principal Activities

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding. The Company’s
subsidiaries are principally engaged in the manufacture and sale of cornstarch, lysine,
starch-based sweetener, modified starch and ancillary corn-based and corn-refined
products. Details of the principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries are set out
in note 15 to the consolidated financial statements.

Business Review

The Group’s revenue is derived from two business segments, namely (i) upstream
products and (i) fermented and downstream products, the production activities of
which are carried out in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

A fair review of the Group’s business during the year is set out in the Management
Discussion and Analysis on pages 10 to 18. The Environmental and Sustainability
Report set out on pages 19 to 29 provides a review on the Group’s environmental
policies, compliance by the Group with the relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group and key relationships with the major stakeholders
to the Group (including its employees, customers and suppliers). The Risk Review
Report set out on pages 30 to 33 provides a comprehensive review on principle risks
and uncertainties facing the Group.

The Group is committed to complying with all environmental policies and other
relevant laws and regulations related to its business operating environment. In
addition, the Group also has an internal laboratory to monitor the quality of our
products perpetually in order to ensure that our products comply with national
standards, including food safety standards.

Connected Transaction

The related party transactions for the year ended 31 December 2020 set out in notes
27 and 34 to the consolidated financial statements did not constitute connected/
continuing connected transactions as defined under the Rules Governing the Listing
of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the
“Stock Exchange”).
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Dividends

The Board is pleased to recommend the payment of a final dividend of HK0.90 cents
per share for the year ended 31 December 2020 to shareholders whose names
appear on the register of members of the Company on 10 June 2021. The proposed
final dividend, if approved at the forthcoming annual general meeting of the Company
(“AGM”), is expected to be paid on or about 14 July 2021 in cash.

Directors
The Directors of the Company during the year and up to the date of this report are:

Executive Directors:

Mr. Tian Qixiang (Chairman)

Mr. Gao Shijun (Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Liu Xianggang

Mr. Yu Yingquan

Independent non-executive Directors:
Professor Hua Qiang

Mr. Sun Mingdao

Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken

By virtue of Article 108(A) of the Articles of Association of the Company (the
“Articles”), Mr. Gao Shijun, Mr. Yu Yingquan and Professor Hua Qiang will retire and,
being eligible, offer themselves for re-election at the forthcoming AGM.

None of the above Directors proposed for re-election has entered into any service
contract with the Company which is not determinable by the Company within one
year without payment of compensation, other than statutory compensation.

The Company has received from each of the independent non-executive Directors an
annual confirmation of his independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules
and considers that all of them are independent.

Directors’ Interest in Transaction, Arrangement or Contract
of Significance

No transaction, arrangement or contract of significance in relation to the Group’s
business to which the Group was a party and in which a Director or his connected
entity had a material interest, whether directly or indirectly, subsisted during or at the
end of the financial year.
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Permitted Indemnity

Pursuant to Article 191 of the Articles, the Directors and other officers of the
Company shall be indemnified out of the Company’s assets from and against all
losses and liabilities which they may incur or sustain in the execution of their duties,
excluding any losses and liabilities that may arise from fraud and dishonesty. The
above indemnity provision was in force during the course of the year and remained
in force as of the date of this annual report. In addition, the Company has maintained
appropriate directors and officers liability insurance for the purpose of indemnifying for
losses in respect of relevant legal actions against the Directors and other officers of
the Company.

Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests

As at 31 December 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company in the shares, underlying shares or debentures of
the Company or any of its associated corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of
the Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of the Laws of Hong Kong) (the
“SFQ”)) as recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to Section 352 of
the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant
to the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers (the
“Model Code”) contained in the Listing Rules, were as follows:
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Name of The Company/ Capacity/ Number and class of Percentage of
Director associated corporation nature of interest securities held shareholding
B4 ’AE/HEER g/ EmtE BHEESYERER ERER DL
(note 1) (note 3)
(k1) (Hi£3)
Mr. Tian Qixiang The Company Interest in a controlled corporation 3,705,385,194 ordinary shares 61.81%
of HK$0.10 each (L) (note 2)
BEHE#EE /NS SR ERER 3,705,385,194/R SR EE0.10% T
MERRL) (H5E2)
Merry Boom Group Limited Beneficial owner 131 ordinary shares of US$1 each (L) 54.58%
IREEEFRAR BEGEEA 131RERAEIZTNEERL)
Mr. Gao Shijun Merry Boom Group Limited Beneficial owner 60 ordinary shares of US$1 each (L) 25.00%
BEELE RREEERAR BaEBA O EREEIZTNEBRL
Mr. Yu Yinggquan Merry Boom Group Limited Beneficial owner 1 ordinary shares of US$1 each (L) 0.42%

FHEREE BEEEBRAR EakEEA 1REREEIEZETNEBERY
Notes: BT -
1) The letter “L” denotes the Directors’ long position in the shares of the Company or the (1) FHI R TNEEFNALBRERAER ZE
relevant associated corporation. R o
©) These shares were held by Merry Boom Group Limited. Merry Boom Group Limited — (2) LWERMBEREEERRABDFR  IREE

is owned as to approximately 54.58% by Mr. Tian Qixiang. Mr. Tian is deemed to be
interested in all the shares held by Merry Boom Group Limited under the SFO.

(3) The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 5,994,132,043 shares in
issue of the Company as at 31 December 2020.
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, none of the Directors and the
chief executive of the Company nor their respective associates had any interest or
short position in the shares, underlying shares and debentures of the Company or
any of its associated corporation (within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO) which
were required to be recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section
352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to the Company and the Stock Exchange
pursuant to the Model Code.

Share Option Scheme

The Company adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) on 19
May 2017. The major terms of the Share Option Scheme are as follows:

1. The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to enable the Group to grant
options to eligible persons as incentives or rewards for their contribution
to the Group and to enable the Group to attract, recruit and retain senior
management, key employees and human resources that are valuable or
potentially valuable to the Group.

2. Eligible participants of the Share Option Scheme are (a) any employee
(whether full-time or part-time including any executive director but excluding
any non-executive director) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or
any entity (“Invested Entity”) in which any member of the Group holds an
equity interest; (b) any non-executive directors (including independent non-
executive directors) of the Company, any of its subsidiaries or any Invested
Entity; (c) any supplier of goods or services to any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; (d) any customer of any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (e) any person or entity that provides research, development
or other technological support to any member of the Group or any Invested
Entity; (f) any shareholder of any member of the Group or any Invested Entity
or any holder of any securities issued by any member of the Group or any
Invested Entity; (g) any adviser (professional or otherwise) or consultant to any
area of business or business development of any member of the Group or
any Invested Entity; (h) any other group or classes of participants who have
contributed or may contribute by way of joint venture, business alliance or
other business arrangement to the development and growth of the Group.
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3. The maximum number of shares of the Company (the “Shares”) which may

6

be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted and yet to
be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme adopted by the Group must not in aggregate exceed 30% of the
number of issued Shares from time to time. The total number of the Shares
which may be allotted and issued upon the exercise of all options (excluding,
for this purpose, options which have lapsed in accordance with the terms of
the Share Option Scheme and any other share option scheme of the Group)
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other share option
scheme of the Group must not in aggregate exceed 10% of the issued
Shares as at the date of approval of the Share Option Scheme.

The total number of Shares issued and which may fall to be issued upon
the exercise of the options granted under the Share Option Scheme and
any other share option scheme of the Group (including both exercised or
outstanding options) to each grantee in any 12-month period shall not
exceed 1% of the issued Share for the time being (“Individual Limit”). Any
further grant of options in excess of the Individual Limit in any 12-month
period up to and including the date of such further grant must be separately
approved by the shareholders of the Company in general meeting with such
grantee and his associates abstaining from voting.

Any grant of options under the Share Option Scheme to a director, chief
executive or substantial shareholder of the Company or any of their respective
associates must be approved by independent non-executive directors of the
Company (excluding independent non-executive director of the Company
who or whose associates is the proposed grantee of the options). In addition,
any grant of options to a substantial shareholder or an independent non-
executive director of the Company or any of their respective associates, in
excess of 0.1% of the issued Shares at any time or with an aggregate value
(based on the closing price of the Shares at the date of the grant) in excess
of HK$5 million, within any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’
approval of the Company in a general meeting.

The exercise period of the share options granted under the Share Option
Scheme is determined by the directors of the Company, which period may
commence from the date of the offer for the grant of options is made, but
shall end in any event not later than 10 years from the date of the offer for the
grant of the option or the expiry date of the Share Option Scheme, whichever
is earlier, subject to the provisions for early termination as stated in the Share
Option Scheme.

The acceptance of an offer of the grant of the option must be made within 28
days from the date of the offer for the grant with a non-refundable payment of
HK$1.00 from the grantee.
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8. The exercise price of the share option is determined by the Board but shall

not be less than the higher of (a) the closing price of the Shares as stated in
the daily quotations sheet of the Stock Exchange on the date of grant; (b) the
average closing price of the Shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheets for the five business days immediately preceding the date
of grant; and (c) the nominal value of the Shares.

9. The Share Option Scheme shall be valid and effective till 18 May 2027.

As at 31 December 2020, no share option had been granted under the Share Option
Scheme of the Company.

Interests of the Substantial Shareholders and Other Persons

As at 31 December 2020, so far as is known to the Directors, the following person,
other than a Director or chief executive of the Company, has an interest or a short
position in the shares or underlying shares of the Company as recorded in the register
required to be kept by the Company under section 336 of the SFO; or as otherwise
being notified to the Company, as being directly or indirectly interested or deemed to
be interested in 5% or more of the issued share capital of the Company:
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DSBS P A RN IRIEE S RPER
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Number
of shares/ Percentage of
Name of Capacity/ underlying issued
shareholder nature of interest shares share capital
15,18 RA HBE81T
KRRETE B3 EENE KRH &R BABESEE
(note 1) (note 3)
(MF5E1) (MF5E3)
Merry Boom Group Limited Beneficial owner (note 2) 3,705,385,194 (L) 61.81%
REERABRAT EmER A (ME2)
Notes: 5T
1) The letter “L” denotes the long position in the shares of the Company. (1) FHRILEREAABTRGETA
©) These shares were held by Merry Boom Group Limited. Merry Boom Group Limited  (2) LERMBERERBRARFTE 8 EE

is owned as to approximately 54.58% by Mr. Tian Qixiang, an executive Director and
Chairman of the Company. Mr. Tian is deemed to be interested in all the shares held by
Merry Boom Group Limited under the SFO as disclosed under the paragraph headed
“Directors’ and Chief Executive’s Interests” above.

3 The percentage of shareholding is calculated on the basis of 5,994,132,043 shares in
issue of the Company as at 31 December 2020.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2020, there were no any other persons
(other than the Directors and chief executive of the Company) who had interests
or short positions in the shares or underlying shares of the Company which were
required to be recorded in the register kept by the Company pursuant to section 336
of the SFO.
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Arrangement to Acquire Shares or Debentures

Other than the Share Option Scheme as disclosed above, at no time during the
year was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any arrangement which
enables the Directors to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of shares in, or
debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

Purchase, Sale or Redemption of the Company’s Listed
Securities

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company repurchased 1,760,000
shares of the Company on the Stock Exchange. These repurchased shares were
cancelled prior to 31 December 2020 and the total number of shares of the Company
in issue has been reduced accordingly. Details of the repurchases were as follows:

BARGHEFHZH

B £ SRR R 2 FR AR A ST B SN I AR RIS
FABHEEANBRATDRBELHEFATSES
EBALRDRENEMEABENROIES
M By 22 5 o

BE-HENBOEAATN LHESF

BEZETEFT A=+ —HUEEFE £RA
BB 3T FrAB(EI,760,00088 4 A Bl B 15 » ZE # (D]
BRHOENR S _ZFE+_A=+—HrigzF#HE
KABBETRMHEUCHEER L ZFHEL 2
EA I

Price per share

SkER
Aggregate
2020 Number of shares Highest Lowest price paid
ZZIEE RIVEE B =1 BiHAER
HK$ HK$ HK$'000
BT BT TR
September LB 235,000 0.150 0.148 35
October +A 200,000 0.134 0.134 27
November +—A 1,325,000 0.131 0.127 171
1,760,000 233

The Directors considered that the repurchases could lead to an enhancement of
the Company’s earnings per share. Save as disclosed above, at no time during the
year ended 31 December 2020 was there any purchase, sale or redemption by the
Company, or any of its subsidiaries, of the Company’s shares.

Pre-Emptive Rights

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, which would oblige the Company to offer new shares on a pro-rata
basis to its existing shareholders.

Major Customers and Suppliers

During the year, sales to the Group’s five largest customers accounted for less than
30% of the Group’s turnover and purchases from the Group’s five largest suppliers
accounted for less than 30% of the total purchases of the Group.
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Public Float

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of its Directors, as at the date of this report, there is sufficient public float
of not less than 25% of the Company’s total issued shares as required under the

Listing Rules.

On behalf of the Board

Tian Qixiang
Chairman
Shouguang, The People’s Republic of China

19 March 2021
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Management Discussion and Analysis
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INDUSTRY OVERVIEW AND COMPANY DEVELOPMENT
Overview

The production capacity of the Group leapt to a new platform in 2020. Going
back to 2014 and 2017, the Group announced the relocation of production site in
Shouguang and the establishment of a joint venture company, Shouguang Golden
Corn Biotechnology Limited (“Golden Corn Biotech”), respectively. As time passed,
the above projects completed gradually in 2019 and the Group started full-scale
cornstarch and lysine production in the Shouguang production complex in 2020. Our
annual production capacity of cornstach and lysine is 2,600,000 tonnes and 300,000
tonnes respectively. Thank you for the support of our staff, suppliers and customers,
we have confidence to progress a flourishing future with this new platform.

As the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”) government implemented effective
measures on controlling the spread of COVID-19, the economic impact of COVID-19
in the PRC was not as much serious as the US and European countries and resumed
quickly during the year under review. The cornstarch and its deep-processing industry
was not materially affected by COVID-19 directly.

Our industry experienced keen competition for many years and there were
many small to medium size market players left the industry. We believe that the
consolidation of market participants will continue in the future. We spend much effort
to improve our production efficiency in return to keep minimal production cost and
increase profitability. Therefore, we could still record profit and maintain a strong
balance sheet during difficult time. In the future, our expansion and development
strategy will focus on the development of new products.

Business Development

The Group’s enterprise resources planning system (the “ERP”) as disclosed in the
2019 annual report was about to complete at the end of 2020. The ERP was in the
final adjustment stage and it would replace the existing system in the first quarter of
2021.

The Group’s future expansion and development strategy will focus on the
development of new products. The Group announced the establishment of a joint
venture company (Shouguang Juneng Musashino Biotechnology Co., Ltd or “Juneng
Musashino”) with a Japanese leading lactic acid and lactic acid derivatives company
(Musashino Chemical Laboratory, Ltd) in August 2020. The Group has 75% equity
interest of Juneng Musashino. The principal activities of Juneng Musashino are
research, development, production and sale of lactate and other related products.
The first phase construction plan includes lactic production facilities of 5,000 tonnes
per annum. As at the date of this report, the Group is still working closely with the
related department of Shouguang Municipal Government for the selection of suitable
production location for Juneng Musashino.
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In addition, the Group has acquired two pieces of land in December 2020 and March
2021 respectively, which the area of these lands is approximately 148,000 square
metres. The land will be used for the construction of lactate acid and polylactic acid
production facilities. Total investment sum would be not more than RMB212 million
(including the land and plant and machineries) and it will be financed by internal
resources of the Group. The annual production capacity of these new facilities will
include 20,000 tonnes lactic acid and 5,000 tonnes polylactic acid respectively. As
at the date of this report, the construction of these facilities has been started and we
expect that it will be completed by the end of 2021. Details of the acquisition of these
two pieces of land were set out in the announcements of the Company dated 12
March 2021 and 15 March 2021 respectively.

Other than the above two construction projects, in March 2020, the Group has
entered into a research and development investment agreement with Tianjin Institute
of Industrial Biotechnology (a non-profit national research institute established
jointly by the Chinese Academy of Sciences and Tianjin Municipal Government) and
became one of the investment partners in a newly established company, Tiangong
Biotechnology (Tianjin) Limited (“Tiangong”). The principal activities of Tiangong are
to carry out research and development of corn derivatives and transfer its research
outcomes to market. The Group’s capital contribution commitment to Tiangong was
RMB10 million which represented 10% equity interest of the company. As at the date
of this report, the Group has contributed capital of RMB2 million to Tiangong.

BUSINESS REVIEW
Upstream Products

The business performance of upstream products, representing cornstarch and its
by-products, was satisfactory. During the COVID-19 pandemic (especially February
to May 2020), our operation was not materially affected. Our facilities were still
running in full capacity despite the delivery of products between cities had a short-
term influence. The market condition in the third quarter of 2020 was worse than
expected. First, the corn kernel cost increased substantially during this period and,
second, such cost pressure could not be shifted to our customers at the same pace.
The Group took strict measures on controlling costs and adjusted production plan to
maintain the profitability. The market atmosphere was improved in the fourth quarter
of 2020 due to the increasing economic activities approaching to the year end and
the slow increase in corn kernel price subsequent to harvest.

We are confident that we are a capable leading market player to manage different
challenges. Although the cost of our corn kernel did not increase in the same pace
with its selling price during the year under review, we still recorded a growth in gross
profit for this business segment. In addition, our additional production capacity was
fully absorbed in the market and without backlog.
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Fermented and Downstream Products

Fermented and downstream products refer to the products derived from cornstarch.
Our fermented and downstream products can be used in the different industries,
such as animal feeding and breeding, paper manufacturing, food and beverage and
chemicals.

During the year under review, the new lysine production facilities operated by Golden
Corn Biotech started to contribute addition lysine production capacity of 150,000
tonnes per annum. Although the animal feeding and breeding market was affected
by the serious oversupply problem and COVID-19, our products were successfully
absorbed in the market. The market price adjustment lagged behind the increased
cost during the year under review. The Group currently does not have any expansion
plan for lysine products.

Starch-based sweetener is mainly used in food and beverage industry and, to
certain extent, is a substitute of cane sugar. Starch-based sweetener business
performance was also affected by the excessive supply. The Group mainly monitored
the production plan and adjusted the production mix throughout the year in order to
maintain our profitability.

Modified starch is mainly used for manufacturing and production of paper, food and
beverage and chemicals. As modified starch has many applications, the business
performance is not easily affected by one single end-user market. The business
performance during the year under review was relatively stable as compared with
other products of the Group.

Other fermented and downstream products represented new biobased materials
which are environmental-friendly and harmless to the society. The characteristic of
these products is that the usage is relatively small but the market price is higher than
the upstream products. The entry barrier is mainly the knowhow of production. During
the year under review, the major fermented and downstream product was lactic acid.
The Group, in the long run, will deploy more resources in the development of different
biobased materials.

FINANCIAL PERFORMANCE
Overview

During the year under review, the Group recorded a total revenue of approximately
RMB8,892 million (2019: RMB6,750 million). Gross profit of the Group increased
significantly by 58.6% to approximately RMB560 million (2019: RMB353 million).

Profit after taxation increased significantly to RMB207 million (2019: RMB98 million).
Basic earnings per share of the Company was RMBO0.0317 per share based on the
weight average number of 5,995,591,000 ordinary shares (2019: RMBO0.0162 per
share based on the weight average number of 5,995,892,000 ordinary shares).

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Segment Performance

Upstream products

Revenue
Gross profit
Gross profit margin

LON
EH
EME

SERE

LiFEm

2020
_EEHE
RMB’000
ARBTT

6,738,510
418,556
6.2%

2019
i
RMB’000
ARWEF 7T

5,317,150
265,129
5.0%

Revenue of upstream products increased significantly by 26.7% to RMB6,739 LB ERHNBAKIEB EFA26.7%E AR
million (2019: RMB5,317 million). The gross profit margin of this business segment  6,739,000,000 Tt (ZZ—h & : AR
increased by 1.2 percentage point to 6.2%. Benefited from the full year operation ~ 5,317,000,0007T) ° &R ZFHE D MR EFZFE EF1.2
effect contributed by Golden Corn Biotech, the sales volume of cornstarch increased EE D E6.2% ZTENREEKEMRENZF
to approximately 1,915,794 tonnes (2019: 1,705,177 tonnes). During the year under  EEFZ > EARKBRMIHE L MEA1,915,7940MF
review, cornstarch and certain of its by-product market prices were suppressed by (ZB—N4E 1 1,7051770F) - REIEEERN > £
the poor market condition. As a result, the Group could not easily shift the increased KB K& T HEIE RN THHERRE TR EM
corn kernel cost to the customers. The average selling price of corn starch was about 5 B o It » A< & B £ LUE £ KK L 5RAY R A 88

RMB2,347 (2019: RMB2,162) per tonne.

BYEF - ERBMNFHEENAEBWARKE
234775 (ZE—NF : ARM2,1627T) ©

Fermented and downstream products BER T FED
2020 2019
ZEEEHE “E2-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF AREFT

Revenue WA

~ Lysine — B 1,442,844 748,439
— Starch-based sweetener — B RD E 357,781 340,287
— Modified starch — B 312,025 305,423
— Others —Hfh 41,101 39,102
Total st 2,153,751 1,433,251
Gross profit EF 141,219 87,875
Gross profit margin ESTES 6.6% 6.1%

Revenue of fermented and downstream products increased substantially to #EBEK THEERPOBARBENE AR

RMB2,154 million (2019: RMB1,433 million).

#2,154,000,000c (ZZE—H&E : AR
1,433,000,0007T) °
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Benefited from the additional lysine production capacity contributed by Golden Corn
Biotech, revenue of lysine products increased significantly by 92.8% to approximately
RMB1,443 million (2019: RMB749 million). The sales volume for overseas and
domestic market increased by 115.2% and 74.9% respectively. During the year
under review, our marketing team spent much effort to develop business with new
customers. The average selling price and sales volume of lysine products was about
RMB5,230 (2019: RMB4,953) per tonne and 275,875 tonnes (2019: 151,116 tonnes)
respectively.

Revenue of starch-based sweetener was approximately RMB358 million (2019:
RMB340 million). The average selling price and sales volume of starch-based
sweetener was about RMB2,201 (2019: RMB2,115) per tonne and 162,586 tonnes
(2019: 160,868 tonnes) respectively.

Revenue of modified starch was RMB312 million (2019: RMB305 million).

Other fermented and downstream products sales represented new generation and
environmental-friendly products. The production scale and the size of domestic
market were comparatively smaller than other businesses of the Group. Revenue of
these products was approximately RMB41 million (2019: RMB39 million).

Cost of sales and gross profit

As consistent with previous year, the major cost components for the year ended
31 December 2020 mainly consisted of corn kernel and utilities expenses. As the
corn kernel market price increased significantly during the year under review, the
percentage of corn kernel cost to total cost of sales increased to about 87.3% (2019:
83.9%). The average purchase price of cornstarch was RMB2,032 (2019: RMB1,767)
per tonne, net of value added tax.

The Group did not enter into any forward/futures contract to hedge the price
fluctuation of corn kernel during the year under review. The Group makes purchases
from the spot market in accordance with its production schedule.

Review of Other Operations
Distribution and administrative expenses

Distribution and administrative expenses for the year ended 31 December 2020
increased significantly because of the increase in sales volume.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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The following tables showed the major expenses in distribution and administrative

expenses respectively.

DERITHERRNEEZERD B TR

2020 2019
—EBTER T —hF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARMEF T

Distribution expenses: DHEER .
Delivery and logistics RS K 160,786 134,098
Marketing expenses MIZEERS 14,279 10,346
Staff costs BT WA 6,384 6,620
Others HA1th 2,780 2,875
184,229 153,939
2020 2019
ZTZEHE —E—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBEF T

Administrative expenses: TIER
Staff costs BT 93,835 73,729
Research and development costs ST IN 28,899 32,635
Depreciation and amortisation expenses TEREHER 24,098 14,959
Government levies BFHE 21,145 16,621
Others HAth 26,940 26,677
194,917 164,621
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Other net income

The other net income decreased to RMB81 million (2019: RMB85 million). The major
items of other net income are set out below:

HtF WA

Hn W AR LD ZE AR 1E81,000,0007t (ZE—H
£ AR¥85,000,0007T) - EMFWARNEEIE
BHE5mT

2020 2019
—EEHF —Z—NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT ANRET T
Amortisation of government grants AT 4/ B B 2 84 58,821 56,981
Gain on sales of scrap materials THERER Z W= 11,521 10,401
Electricity and related service B KBRS 4,348 147
Accounts payable written back I INEAN 3,996 -
Gain on futures contracts HEEH N 2,524 328
Government grants (one-off) BB (—x M) 1,543 2,824
(Loss)/gain on disposals of property, plant and equipment ~ HEY ¥ HERZHEN
(B518) /s (1,231) 12,570
Net foreign exchange loss PE R R518 2 %8 (4,036) (1,534)
Others Hith 3,385 3,008
80,871 84,725
HUMAN RESOURCES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES ANE R R EHMEUER

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had about 2,316 full time staff (2019: 2,300)
in the PRC and Hong Kong. Total staff costs, including Directors’ emoluments,
of the Group were approximately RMB190 million (2019: RMB208 million). The
Group considers the experience, responsibility, and performance of the Directors
and employees of the Group in order to determine their respective remuneration
packages.

The Company has adopted a share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”)
in order to enable the Group to grant options to eligible persons as incentives or
rewards for their contribution to the Group as well as to attract, recruit and retain
senior management, key employees and human resources that are valuable or
potentially valuable to the Group.

In addition, a remuneration committee is delegated by the Board to review and
determine the terms of remuneration packages, bonuses and other compensation
payable to the Directors and senior management.

As at 31 December 2020, no share options have been granted under the Share
Option Scheme.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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FINANCIAL MANAGEMENT AND TREASURY POLICY

The Group adopts a conservative approach for cash management and investment on
uncommitted funds. The primary purpose of our financial management and treasury
policy is to ensure possessing of sufficient cash and available banking facilities to
meet its commitment on one hand and to obtain better return on the other hand. Any
unused fund is not only placed on short-term/fixed deposits with authorised financial
institutions in Hong Kong and/or the PRC, but also short-term capital-and-reward
guaranteed financial instruments.

FOREIGN CURRENCY EXPOSURE

The Directors do not consider the exposure to foreign exchange risk being significant
to the Group’s operation as the Group operated mainly in the PRC and most of the
Group’s transactions, assets and liabilities were denominated in Renminbi. Foreign
currencies were however received from export sales. Such proceeds were subject
to foreign exchange risk before converting into Renminbi. The foreign currencies
received from export sales were converted into Renminbi upon receipt from overseas
customers. The Group manages foreign exchange risk by monitoring the exchange
rates closely instead of entering into any foreign exchange hedging arrangement.

LIQUIDITY, FINANCIAL RESOURCES AND CAPITAL
STRUCTURE

The key financial performance indicators of the Group for the year ended 31
December are set out below:

MBERREHHR

AEEHTEEEARNESTRKNAERTHREE
BRERARE RAMBEEREFTRRNEE
BENARAFAEHRELITHARTEERN
HKEE > URBSEENDOR - ERHRBANE
EHREERNEB R RN ENRE S REEE
K2HEHATERON I e A ERE B A HR R AR UK
HRERMT A

4 BE /= B

ENAERTEETEEEEE MAEB K
ARG EERBERDBDUARBSE REEAS
AEE BT AR BAIMNE R o 24T 0 tHO8H
BRI BB RINE - BRFMSMER RS
AR A REZINE R [ ot 8 & WA 5 8
REEiEREEE AR ARE AEBELE
METSShER 2 B n N EESNE R R =
EBEYEBEXEERME -

NRBEE -MBERRERRE

FEEHET-B=T—HILFENMRYBEE
WIERHHINT ¢

Units 2020 2019
B —EZZ% —E-NEF
Debtors turnover &S AR B 88 days X 25 26
Creditors turnover e ERF B days X 7 8
Inventories turnover FERE days X 30 27
Current ratio TRB)LEEE times 1% 1.9 1.7
Quick ratio RBLE= times 1% 1.2 1.2
Gearing ratio (note 1) EREEE (f5E1) % 2.8 3.4
Total shareholder return (note 2) el 3R =E (MY5E2) % 13.3 -8.3
Notes: M 5T
1) Gearing ratio is calculated as the borrowings to total assets. 1) BRI T RERR AR EESHE -
) Total shareholder return combines share price appreciation and dividends paid to show  (2) MR ROIREAEREARREMRE U

the total return to shareholders. f52 B 7 % BR A SR A 4R [B] 3R ©
RIBIEF+-A=+—H FxEEAHE/HNE
FRERARBEGM rEBHEFNRABBEEDN
BEEH BAINEL BN ZRIRMETEM
AREMNEEREFBZEIN EREARTA
Frigm o

The Group recorded a significant increase in advances from customers as at 31
December 2020. The Group has strict credit control on the accounts of customers.
Most of our customers are required to provide down payments before delivery. As our
production capacity increased significantly as compared with last year, advances from
customers also increased.
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The Directors are of the opinion that the working capital available to the Group is
sufficient for its present requirements. As at 31 December 2020, borrowings of
approximately RMB101 million and RMB26 million were denominated in Renminbi
and Hong Kong Dollar respectively. These borrowings were carried interest at fixed
rates and with a maturity within one year. The Group’s cash and cash equivalents
were mostly denominated in Renminbi. The decrease in borrowings was mainly
attributable to the improved profitability during the year under review.

PLEDGE OF ASSETS

As at 31 December 2020, bills payables were secured by bank acceptance bills of
RMB4,256,000 million and bank deposits of approximately RMB4,353,000. As at 31
December 2020, the Group did not pledge any leasehold land and building to secure
banking facilities.

CONTINGENT LIABILITIES

The Group did not have any significant contingent liabilities as at 31 December 2020.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 December 2020, the Company’s reserves available for distribution to
shareholders amounted to approximately RMB131 million.

DIVIDEND POLICY

The Board intends to create long term value for the shareholders of the Company
through maintaining a balance between dividend distribution, adequate cash flow and
reserve to meet its working capital requirement and capturing growth opportunities.
The Board may propose or declare the payment of dividends after taking into account
the current financial performance, the future financial requirements and any other
factors that may deem relevant to the Company. The Board may decide the frequency
of dividend payment and further declare or recommend any special distributions.
Dividends may be declared or paid by way of cash or scrip or by other means that the
Board considers appropriate. The payment of dividend is also subject to compliance
with applicable laws and regulations including the laws of Cayman Islands and the
Company’s memorandum and articles of association. The Board will review this
dividend policy from time to time and there can be no assurance that dividend will be
paid in any particular amount for any given period.

]8  CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED HERIIZERERAS
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Basis of preparation

The preparation of this report was conducted mainly with reference to the
“Environmental, Social and Governance Reporting Guide” set out in Appendix 27 of
the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited. We aimed to provide a balanced and comprehensive review on mainly the
environment and social performance of different areas in our Group with our major
stakeholders in this report. We used priority issue analysis to identify and focus the
primary needs and issues faced by our stakeholder groups.

This report covered the overall environmental and social performance of all major
subsidiaries of the Group which are set out in note 15 to the consolidated financial
statements during the year ended 31 December 2020 which engage in the
manufacturing and sales activities in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).

Disclaimer statement

The performance data set out in this report are not independently audited or verified.
The management endeavours to present a complete and meaningful information to
the user of such data, however, we cannot assure the accuracy or completeness
of data in which we collected. The accuracy of the data we produced in this report
may be affected by, inter alia, unit conversion factors, material/quality tolerance, and
difference in material used and method of production. Therefore, we accept no liability
for the accuracy of the information if users of such data suffer any losses or damage.

What we believe

Cornstarch is one of the most versatile and easily workable resources which also
has a wide range of application in various industries. From the perspective of corn
supply, the promotion of using cornstarch would support the development of local
and village economy by wise-using the agricultural lands. From the perspective of
demand of corn kernel, cornstarch is one of the most commonly used components
of tens of thousands of manufactured products nowadays. Its existence can be found
in different formats, such as clothing we wear, the food and beverage served in the
restaurant, and as far as oil exploration. Thus, we maintain a positive view on our
business in the long run.

With our strong platform, we are positioned to capture the benefits of an increasing
market share and are well prepared for further sustainable growth. Even though
we are facing the current tough and uncertain global and domestic environment,
our objective remains unchanged, which is to be in a leading position in the corn-
refinery industry in the PRC. To achieve this goal, the Directors and the Board’s
executive management teams are engaged in expanding our Group in various
aspects, including our production capacity of cornstarch and lysine products, our
product pipeline, our marketing force and our market coverage. The Company is also
committed to enhancing our research and development capability.
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ek

e Research and development

Goal Method Outcome

Bz Bt HER

Become a market leader in the corn refinery industry in| ©  Cost control Create value to our shareholders
China PR A 2 ~IERAISEE
RAREERERNLENTZESE e Strengthen the balance sheet

Our Methodology to this Report

We conducted a stakeholder review every year to ensure that we can address
material issues related to the Group. This year, we add one more stakeholder,
business strategic partners, in our report.

The Group’s sustainability is highly dependent on the relationship with its
stakeholders. Besides creating value to shareholders of the Company, we also create
value to our stakeholders beyond monetary terms. We are committed to balancing
financial performance with how we do business, how we treat our people, how we

live the

values in our business relationships and how we care for the environment

which we rely on. We have seven major stakeholder groups which can participate in
or affect our decision-making process and influence our business outcomes.

A.

20

Talents

We recognise that the health and safety of our people come first as
they are key to our long-term success. This is core to us and to every
aspect of our business. We believe the achievement of positive workplace
relations is mutually beneficial to the Group and our employees as
workplace efficiency is achieved when labour relationships allow for a
culture of continuous improvement and acceptance of change. Thus, we
encourage communication at all levels. Apart from regular meetings with the
representative of the Group’s labour union, we also obtain opinions from
and provide feedbacks within our workgroups in order to ensure continual
improvement for the work environment and other staff related matters. To
understand, manage and, where possible, minimise occupational injuries
or illnesses in our business is equally important. We have appropriate
controls in place and provide our people with appropriate training to ensure
compliance with the relevant laws and regulations in relation to employees’
health and safety. On-the-job trainings related to individual development are
also provided to our people to enhance skills and capabilities for discharging
duties at work. The purpose of this arrangement lets our staff get familiar with
all accidental situations and minimise the risk of accidents.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED PR ZEREREAE

BARERERBHT E

RMEEgHRNEETED  UWEFRRMER
REXERFMNERERE - AFE RMERS
RIS — R0 & BIEBBRR B

FEENDFEERAEERANARAFTHERN
BifFk IR aARRRAEEEN RATHEND
ERETBLMINEE RARNEM BT RFH
KE-BIFE NEBBAETRRERMEERS
BRI LUEE IR A 5 TR IS T 7 o IR AF
BLEIZEFNEEHSAREZERMFRE
B BREHRMNEFERENTE-

A. AF

BRMAAREINRRRZE2HNEQ
NEZ2M AAREZRMDERENYD
RS - ST ERMREBIE A ENZ
LoHMARBEFBEGNE THENAE
EkEEEHFHEDE  HHERMAESN
BIFR A B DU I 2 52 e Y S B - B AES
BB RER - FIt - RIS R F 4R BB
BTETBEB BREAERTGARET
ERE R RATEIECRE LE/NER
BREREHEIE  URERFESETIEER
BRAME THMEER FRBAKREN
REETNREGREE KRNI TER
THRELBEGRNKERERERK
BEZ-RMECACENERER LHE8
ITRHEBEEIUERETARESR
BheZ2NERERFER -BRATRE
TRHEEEFAZEREBANERE
DRFAMER TERRITRF BB BE

BEN - BRLHEESHMNE TAEFR
ARINME WRELESEHNEREER
&



Environmental and Sustainability Report
IRIG A FFEE RIS

Our training events and drills are pre-scheduled and run in a cycle. During the
COVID-19 period, the Group still provided training to staff by using mobile
and online technology. In order to minimize the risk of spreading virus, we
encouraged learning at home. The related training materials covered about
36 safety accident cases and 12 online assessments. Drills were divided
into small operating units in order to minimize body contacts. Sterilisation
of equipment, body temperature checking and wearing mask were required
for each drill. We also used online interview method to recruit new staff. The
Group recruited about 140 staff during this period. Our staff training was
resumed to normal in the second quarter when the COVID-19 was under
control in the PRC.

Our training and drills are mandatory and their results will become a part
of the staff appraisal record. Major training topics and activities are shown
below:

- Personal hygiene and prevention of COVID-19 knowledge

- Fire prevention and fire drill

- Hazardous chemical leaking drill

- Safety laws and regulations

- Occupational disease prevention training

- Body check provided for selected staff with high occupational disease
risk

- Liquid flammable chemical rescue exercise

- Electrician, welder and boiler worker safety training

- Lightning protection check

- Update and change of hazard identification and warning cards

- Safety requirement for using hoisting belts
- Prevention of dust explosion

KMTBLERH L E RETIEIES B
& - {ECOVID-1988[E > REBNER B E)
K i3 Fii A B TR B - BEHERER
ENRAREERE RASZBMETERS
B o BRI B R AENRLEEEHNR
B R 12184 F5TE BB AR/ NEENE
BEMET URERDVALNENEE
BREEHRHREES BRERRRM
HOS-RAETEBR TERIBENE
T -AEERARERBIEEN140%8
T oCOVID-197E RES EI £ HI1E » I
BEFEMEETEI

FPIBIE T iR B R bAY M E A R
Pz B TEHEREN—E 0 - TZEIFE
BROEBI TP ¢

— BB REIE K TEFHCOVID-19%]
E:

— Bk R K E R

— BEC2YRARESR

— 225 KR A

— G 2 = s RO B 2 8|

— REETNBERRSREEIR
HEERE

— BEESIME2RIBES

— BT IRTMIAETAZ2E

— BERERD

— EMEEREEYRHNRES
*

— FRESEENZ2EK

— BEVR FERS

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 —Z—Z&g® 2]



Environmental and Sustainability Report
IRIE AL RS

22

At the same time, we strive to cultivate sustainable employment practices
and labour standards by strictly complying with the PRC Labour Law,
the PRC Labour Contract Law and other applicable PRC employment
regulations throughout our production processes, and by promoting fair
and equal treatment in all areas of human resources, including recruitment
and promotion, compensation and dismissal, working hours, diversity, rest
periods, equal opportunity, anti-discrimination, and other benefits and welfare.
We usually recruit staff in colleges to ensure the candidates have sufficient
working capability. In addition, we also check candidates’ identification
document to avoid hiring child labour. It is our policy to avoid child and forced
labour in any of our operations. We believe that the Group can uphold human
rights, prevention of child labour and forced labour by strictly complying with
the above laws and regulations and internal policy.

In adherence with high standards of business ethics and anti-bribery policies,
all employees (including Directors) are required to abide by our ethics policy.
Our employees are prohibited from conducting themselves in any way which
involves any illegal behaviours by taking advantage or abusing their positions,
including but not limited to bribery, fraud, extortion, money laundering
and illegally obtaining or accepting benefits from others. In addition, a
whistleblowing policy has been implemented to provide a secured reporting
channel for employees and stakeholders including, among others, customers
and suppliers to report any suspected misconduct or malpractice involving
the Group.

In 2020, the Group had an occupational death case which a staff was subject
to sudden cardiac death during his rest time in staff accommodation.

During the year under review, the Group also provided corruption prevention
study materials to the Directors. Our staff handbook also included anti-
corruption clauses to enhance staff’'s awareness of handling conflict of
interest situations. We set the tone at the top and implement these rules at all
levels in the Group. Our in-house training is mandatory and applicable to all
staff without distinction by gender.

During the year under review, there had been no incidences of non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant
impact on the Group regarding, among others, safe working environment,
occupational hazards, employment and labour practices, bribery, extortion,
fraud and money laundering, preventing child and forced labour and anti-
corruption and no legal proceedings or cases regarding corrupt practices had
been instituted by or brought against the Group and/or its employees.
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Notes:

The following table summarised the employment information of the major

PRC subsidiaries of the Group for the past three consecutive years.

Number of employees

By gender
- Male
- Female
By age group
— Under 30
-301to0 50
— Above 50

By employment type

— Permanent
— Temporary

Staff turnover ratio?

By gender
- Male
— Female
By age group
— Under 30
-301to0 50
— Above 50

Number of Fatalities®

Rate of Fatality®

Lost time injury (“LTI")

Rate of LTI®

Training hours® (per month)

— General
— Middle-level
— Senior

Staff turnover represents the employees (permanent and temporary) leaving the Group

voluntarily.

BEA#
kb

—B %

— %
FFEANDE

— 30 MU

— 305% £505%

— 50 &
EIELER
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BTk
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FFEANDE

— 30 MU

— 305% £505%

— 50 &
T EHWEH
T HRER
BRIBEITE

(MBRIFIHI)

BERIRIEXR
B EE (8 H)
—R
—thiR

—E®

2020
—E_EF

2,313

1,925
388

592
1,646
75
2,294
19
5.2%
0.7%
3.0%
2.6%

0.3%

0.18%

0.36%
14.8

19.8
33.5

MIEE -

Fatality is the death of an employee as a result of an occupational injury incident in the o

course of employment.

The rates are the number of incidents within a financial year relative to the total number °
of hours worked in the same financial year. The rates are normalised to 1,000,000

worked hours.

LTl is an occupational injury sustained by an employee for which the employee misses d
one or more scheduled workdays after the day of injury.
The average number of training hours per employee is calculated as the total internal °
training hours to different employee categories.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

TERBRAERTZREMBERARDBE
—EEEFENREBER-

2019
—E-nF

2,300

1,884
416

600
1,615
85

2,273
27
6.4
0.8
4.4
2.5

0.3

0.26

0.26

11.9
18.3
29.6

2018
—E—-N\F

2,192
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Suppliers

We have developed trust with our suppliers. We, as a leading cornstarch
manufacturer, play an important role in the procurement of corn kernel in
Shouguang and Linging districts, which are located in Shandong province.
Our suppliers mainly consist of farmers, cooperatives, agents and traders
in the PRC. We provide our corn kernel offer price to our suppliers by using
mobile technology. While our procurement is carried out on a 24/7 basis, we
propose corn kernel offer prices to our suppliers through mobile technology
to increase efficiency. We believe that our suppliers will deliver the best corn
kernel to us at their first priority because our offer prices are transparent
and we show commitment to purchase at our initial offer prices. In 2020, we
expanded our corn kernel collection beyond Shandong province and used
third parties’ barns for temporary storage.

Our second largest supplier group is the suppliers of chemical materials and
consumables. Most of them are also located in the PRC. In order to have a
fair, transparent and competitive environment, it is our policy to publish our
tender invitation on the company’s website. Offer price given by tenderers
is not the only crucial factor considered by us. Historical compliance
records, such as labour practices, business ethics and environmental
protection policies, will also be considered during the selection process. We
have a similar procedure for the selection of construction and equipment
contractors.

The Group also have a quality assurance policy on our suppliers. We conduct
supplier audits and on-site inspections to (i) ensure that the materials used
by our suppliers complied with the contract specifications and (i) review any
potential risk or issue on environment and labour practice. If the performance
of work is carried in our site, the contractor is also required to follow our
factory safety regulations.

It is our target to maintain an open and a fair business environment to our
partners. We are committed to maintaining highest standards of openness,
probity and accountability. We not only have a whistle-blowing policy which
allows the report of any misconduct, but also have anti-bribery provision in
our procurement agreements stating the consequence of the breach of the
Group’s anti-corruption policy. During the year, the Group did not receive
reports in respect of staff or supplier corruption.
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Customers

Product safety is a great issue as we produce base raw materials for our
customers. Our products can be reproduced for animal feeds or other
products for human intake. The maintenance of high product quality is the
only key to customers’ loyalty. Our quality assurance programme ensures
that our product standards can be identified precisely in accordance with the
Chinese national standards issued by The Standardization Administration of
the PRC. In addition, we also work closely with our customers to develop our
order book and provide the required products at the right time. In 2020, we
introduced a new coding system which increased the accuracy of delivery of
products and the frequency of customers’ opinion review.

During the year under review, there had been no incidences of non-
compliance with relevant laws and regulations that have a significant impact
on the Group regarding, health and safety, marketing and labelling.

During the year under review, the Group did not receive any substantiated
and material complaints that the Group had to recall and treat the whole
batch of product as scrap material for safety and health reasons.

Governments

One of our major stakeholders is government authorities. The Group shows
its commitment to improve production efficiency by using modernised
production facilities and deploying resources in the development of
production knowhow. The payback of these investments would not be within
a short time. To ensure that the development direction is on the right way with
long-term government support, we maintain good working relationship with
the municipal governments. In addition, we have worked closely with local
governments, other government bureaus, such as Environmental Protection
Bureau and Tax Bureau. We expect that our continuous commitments
and support to the government authorities would assist them in better
understanding and responding to our industry needs.

Business Strategic Partners

It is the Group’s vision to become a leading market player in the corn-
refinery industry in the PRC. Our business strategies are formulated under
this basis. Now, we are gradualy moving toward cornstarch-derivative
markets representing high value-added products and higher barrier of entry.
We welcome cooperation with other leading market players and develop
businesses with them.

During the year under review, the Group partnered with a leading Japanese
company, Musashino Chemical Laboratory, Ltd, which is principally engaged
in producing lactic acid and other related products, and established a new
non-wholly owned subsidiary, Shouguang Juneng Masashino Biotechnology
Co., Ltd.
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The Group also entered into an investment agreement with Tianjin Institute of
Industrial Biotechnology, Chinese Academy of Sciences to subscribe a capital
contribution to Tiangong Biotechnology (Tianjin) Limited. The purpose of this
cooperation is to transfer the research outcomes to market.

To ensure long-term success, we carry out market assessment analysis on
potential products cautiously. It is important to select a suitable business
partner who should have high reputation in the industry and proven
successful business record.

Shareholders

One of the major stakeholders of the Company is our shareholders. We share
our business objective with and create value to our shareholders. Our long-
term corporate strategy is to maximise total shareholder return. The Board
undertakes the management responsibility on behalf of our shareholders.
During our decision-making process, we strive to strike a balance among
various factors, including without limitation maintaining a healthy balance
sheet, choosing sustainable development projects, and determining the
optimal financial requirements of the Group.

The Board established a shareholders’ communication policy setting out the
principles of the Company in relation to shareholders’ communications, with
the objective of ensuring the availability of balanced and understandable
information and each of the shareholders are treated equally. We encourage
shareholders and potential investors read the Company’s corporate
communication policy, which is available at the Company’s website.

Environment
Environmental Policies

The Group understands that our business has an impact on the environment
and we recognise the importance of sound environmental management
practices and sustainable business operations. We are committed to meeting
all environmental standards and policies as set by the PRC government.

Throughout the year under review, there were no material incidence of non-
compliance with the relevant environmental laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the Group. Our environmental strategy is to achieve
a balance between cost of production on one hand, and greenhouse gas
(“GHG”) emissions and sewage disposal on the other hand. Our business is
both energy and water intensive, the Group has its own facilities to reduce
GHG emissions and treat sewage before disposal to city sewage network.
A perpetual monitoring system on sewage disposal is reported to local
environmental protection bureau and open to public inspection. In order to
protect our environment and reduce the cost of production, we use methane
generated from sewage treatment to produce steam for internal use.
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We currently do not set any target on the reduction of emission or non-
hazardous waste. It is because these factors are easily affected by the
product mix and the method of production. For example, the energy
consumption ratio for liquid sweetener and crystallised sweetener are
materially different. We perpetually adjust our production plan to satisfy our
customers’ order on one hand and maximise the efficiency of utilities and
other resources consumption ratio on the other hand, having regard to the
importance of sound environmental management practices and sustainable
business operations.

During the year under review, the Group did not produce any hazardous
waste in our production plants. In addition, most of our non-hazardous
wastes are collected and sold to third parties for other uses.

Use of Resources

Other than corn kernel, electricity and water are the other two major costs
amongst the costs of production. The electricity we used is mainly generated
from coal in Shandong province. Although the Group does not have any
option to choose the source for the production of energy, we spend much
effort to improve production efficiency and, in return, we can reduce the
GHG intensity indirectly. For example, the management team reviews the
energy consumption rate and sets a new target at the beginning of every
financial year. Water is a vital resource for our planet. It is used to grow crops,
feed animals and people, generate electricity and steam, and produce our
products. We extract underground water during the production and use our
own reclaimed water treatment facilities to minimise over-reliance of using
underground water and its impact to the environment. We are committed to
using water responsibly.

Packaging Materials

As the output volume increased significantly over the past few years, we
are aware of the increasing use of packaging materials. In 2020, we worked
closely with our customers and promoted the reuse of packaging materials.
For example, we modernised the packaging method (e.g. encourage small-
size packaging). The advantages of using the new packaging method
allow the Group to collect and reuse the packaging materials and reduce
transportation cost. Based on our cost estimation, the new packaging
method effectively reduced our packaging and distribution expenses
significantly.
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Environmental and Sustainability Report
IRIG A B RIS

The following table summarised the environment-related information
major subsidiaries of the Group for the past three consecutive years.

FRABBK QLAR)

Fresh water used (m?)

Fresh water consumption BIKCHERERE
intensity index’
Electricity used (GWh) PRAE 7 (FEE)

Electricity consumption EIIEEREIRE
intensity index’
Steam used (tonne)
Steam consumption

intensity index’

PRABZES (M)
FAHFEREE

Fuel used (litre)

PR AR (2 F)

- Diesel L3
- Unleaded petrol — SIS
GHG emissions? (tonne of COz¢) B Z F ASHE e

(MEEE |

— Scope 1" —EE1"
— Scope 2 —EE2
— Total GHG emission —BERBBAEBE

GHG emission intensity index*
Water discharged (m?)
— Waste water to
recycled water
— Waste water to
sewage network
Non-hazardous waste'
produced (tonne)
Packaging material used (tonne)
Reused packaging materials to
total packaging materials

BERBHHOREIRRK

KEFRE (L 5K)

—EEKEEAEIRBAK
— R E S K ABAR B RE K

ELERIFEREY ()

PR A ELEL4 4} (PiE)

BRAaEMEHLEE

MiHEE

for all

2020
TEIERE

2,095,597

156
741

104
2,592,062

97
402,926

84,700

1,300
1,237,561
1,238,861

100
3,123,921

2,829,307

70,717
7,893

20%

TERBEAEERMETEZMBERTNE
EEE=FMIREARRER

2019 2018
“EBE-NEF “E-N\EF
1,194,022 1,205,195
106 138

467 404

78 87
1,754,470 1,510,949
78 87
361,173 248,482
90,584 94,881
1,171 897
812,283 569,895
813,454 570,792
78 70
2,401,416 1,750,655
2,348,681 1,670,782
40,778 45,306
7,074 5,241
23% 14%

Notes:
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Fresh water, electricity and steam consumption intensity indices are calculated as the
intensity of fresh water, electricity and steam consumed per tonne of physical product
produced in the financial year relative to the intensity in the 2016 base year (set to 100).

The methodology used for the determination of emissions for the financial year 2016 is
based on various documents, such as 2006 IPCC Guidelines for National Greenhouse
Gas Inventories, and the 2015 Baseline Emission Factors for Regional Power Grids in
China issued by the Department of Climate Change and IPCC Fifth Assessment Report.

Scope 1 emissions represent the emissions from combustion of fuels at stationary
sources to generate electricity, steam, or heat which are owned or controlled by the
Group and transportation emissions from owned or operated vehicles.

Scope 2 emissions are emissions from consumption of purchased electricity, steam and
heat.

Total GHG emissions are direct emissions, plus emissions from the net change of
purchasing and selling of electricity and steam.

GHG emission intensity index is calculated as the GHG emissions from physical
products produced in the financial year relative to the intensity in the base year (set to
100). The base year is 2016.

Non-hazardous wastes mainly represent sludge, saccharified residue, inactivated
bacteria residue and fertiliser.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED PR ZEREREAE
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Environmental and Sustainability Report
IRIG A FFEE RIS

Other Environmental and Social Areas
Staff care

In order to minimise the risk of spreading COVID-19, the Group reduced the
employee recreational events and provided protective gear, eg. masks, temperature
guns, gloves, alcohol sprayers, etc, to staff and their families during the year under
review. Such expense was about RMB132,000.

Intellectual property rights

We spend much resources on research and developments of new products or
innovation of new production methods. It is very difficult to quantify the result of our
study outcome in monetary term. The use of these knowhow, however, can improve
our production efficiency and control our cost effectively. In order to protect our
research and development results, the Group will register the results with National
Intellectual Property Administration in the PRC.

Consumer data protection and privacy policies

Our transactions are business to business model. Therefore, consumer data
protection and privacy policies are not material to our operation.
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HthRIR R FaiR
BTRE

AHFTBER/DCOVID-19E I A B > A5 B 7 [ B
FEANRVEBRYLEZH TABTIRAREIR
HIpREE WOS ARBE-FE - ABEES
Loz A ARBE182,0007T ©

M A

HPEERNAE SR EES AN S ER
BMABER - RMIBARERELATHEREL-
PAT > MPIBEME BB E R MR B L & £ ERE Y
BRERIRA - T RERMINAEMR  £EH
iS5 ) F B B 2R R E ) PR B R A SR B AR

HEBEEERRERLRBHE
HPINTZUEEREENRIET - FHIL HE

EEHNRERLEERERMNEEMSLIFE
RIEE -

29

—ECTFFER



Risk Review Report
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Risk reconsideration

An effective risk review system could help an entity to minimise and manage
risks efficiently. Our risk management and internal control systems are not one-
off arrangements; instead they are integrated into our daily business operations
and decision-making process. The objective of upholding a high standard of risk
management and internal control is to guarantee the sustainability of the Group’s
development.

During the year under review, the outbreak of COVID-19 pandemic caused short-
term turbulence to our operation. However, our production plants at Shouguang
and Linging remained full operation during the lockdown. We had certain pandemic
prevention measures to protect our staff and subcontractors. COVID-19 is a lesson
which allows the management to review our development strategy and related risk
thoroughly.

The Board has the overall responsibility for the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems. These systems are monitored by the Board through the assistance
of the Audit Committee, Corporate Strategy and Development Department and
Internal Audit Department.

Identifying risks

The management uses risk scorecard to rank and compare each identified risk and its
related impact posing to the Group. Through this analysis process, all identified risks
are presented to the Board in an effective and comprehensible manner. The Board
reviews the risks and mitigation tools every year.

How we manage risk

Risk and control responsibility must be well-defined and delegated to each staff. Each
staff must understand their duty and recognise their responsibility. A well-defined
control prevention system is a key to success. Our risk prevention mechanism is as
follows:

RBRES

BHHERENRRTEDBERRABEERE
REMMEERR BREERANBEZERFL
F-RBOLE R ZERMERMNAEE
BEBRARBEN—BMH ERsKERRE
BRABEENENERENERAIFELERE

REREERE  COVID-19B 1B IR M EEAEL 7 M
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EEREITG A
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Risk ownership

[ B A I

Monitoring
BE
oo

B

Compliance review
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The executive management team is assigned with the responsibility for managing risks and monitoring the
implementation of risk mitigation policies. In addition, the team heads are required to pledge themselves to ensure
appropriate control procedures are in place within their respective teams to the Chief Executive Officer once a
year.

PITEEEREEEERARLEERBFEBRNZEEB R LN S/NETE
ZENEKEHTEBNGEERR -

ABFRTEBHEERRE

A monthly management report in respect to the operation, market and safety issues is circulated amongst the
management team. It allows the management to stay alert on potential risk in different seasons.
BANMKE TBERZE2EENEEEBRRREERS CEEEHFAAZ=HMNETRBRITER -

Internal Audit Department considers the review areas for the coming year and discusses its plan with the Audit
Committee. It also carries out ad-hoc task on specific area which required by the Board or the management.
The internal audit report will be discussed with the respective department head and reviewed by the Board
respectively.

NEBEZBPIZRRENEEHBE TEEZEZEGTmEATE AT REFENEEENERYFEEE
THREEZ NBERREHESHEENH ThEESEM-
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Risk Review Report
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Challenges

During the year under review, the Group had completed the construction of the
remaining Shouguang production plant. Our Shouguang production complex is the
largest production unit in the Group which focuses on the production and sales of
cornstarch, lysine and other cornstarch derivative products. We also entered into
a joint venture agreement with Musashino Chemical Laboratory, Ltd to establish
a subsidiary in Shouguang. The new company mainly focuses on research,
development, production and sales of lactate and other related products. We are
committed to deploying our resources in the development of cornstarch derivative
products. This business development would bring us to a new platform which gives
us new opportunity and risk. Therefore, we identify certain new risks after reviewing
the risk analysis.

Principle risks analysis

Principle risk and uncertainty identification are part of our risk management system.
During the year under review, the Board held one meeting to discuss the risks and
mitigation tools. The following analysis shows the major risks and uncertainties that
are considered material and may adversely affect the business and financial position
of the Group.

kB

REBEFE AEBSTEMSEETHRZERT
BR-BAGAEERMNAERRRZEES
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BRTae BERHERHARI T FIL NERRR
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FERES

HATEZRREIEERNRERMEAREEZRR
REP—HD RNEBEFE EFFRT—REH
smERREFERBRI TR - LU DTEIIRER
REARIIERNAEBNEZRMBRREET
AEENTERBATEERSR-

challenge of oversupply and weak demand of cornstarch and its related
products accelerates over the year.

Major risks Mitigation plans
FERM SFEREME
Lack of growth dynamic in the PRC o Maintain a strong balance sheet
o Maintain sufficient banking facilities
Our businesses are dependent on the prosperity of Chinese market. The | e Strengthen the credit control of customers
. Develop our business in cornstarch-derivative product market

Group
Production schedule may be affected by working safety review and |e
environmental review.

We have no compromise on staff safety. Failure to follow safety laws,
regulations and standards may result in workplace accidents involving injury
or fatality. During the year under review, we spend much effort to ensure
that safety controls are in place.

In order to fulfil regional gas pollutant benchmark set by the local
government, factories in the region may be required to limit their production
output temporarily. The frequency of such requirement may increase in the
future.

BFNIRELAMAEE
SEFEERITFR2EERIRBFLHNEE-
BHEETIRE2FEHLETED - MAREETREZEG RO KIRE 7]
FEEERTIEMBEELERIN ERBET - REBFE RASHREZLE
B ZeEE-

BT HEEMBNGIENME RIS RYIER ZHEN TR EER
ERGEHRBIES - BEZBE RO RBIERRETEFIEM

B EHE

. HEREBNEESER
RHPBERMERE S . REFRHNIRITRE
. MmeaBERNEEESEE
BMNEBKBRPETHHEE KM K EBBERHRBRREE | BERERBMITEERTIHNERS
KIESSRVBEE IS E RN A ©
Failure to operate our plants as scheduled o Safety Supervision Department to oversee all safety issues of the

Corporate Strategy and Development Department to monitor control
procedures in place regularly

o Perform various safety exercises and safety drills regularly

Maintain high level of gas emission standard during our production

ZEBERAEEMAEREER
EERLYESEMEERER
EHETESRBZEEIRZEER
REEPRESRENREETFBKT
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Risk Review Report
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Our product may not achieve our customer’s required level of quality
or national standard. Poor quality or sub-standard product could have
negative impact on our brand image and reputation.

BEMBRMANEREE

BPMNERKEEINELFERNESKFHEREE-
HNERBHRMANGBESREESESEaETE-

BERPHAFTEH

Major risks Mitigation plans
FERR FAER TS
Failure to minimise adverse impacts from national-wide disruptive | e Sourcing from national food reserve or other regions
forces such as disease and natural disaster o Maintain adequate insurance to protect our assets

o Review and update our mitigation plan regularly
External events (such as swine flu, flooding, crop failure) would have |e Set up emergency mitigation action group if necessary
significant impact on our business. This could happen at any time without
warning. . REREBHEEHEMMERE

. BEEANREBURERMNEE
BERERREBAKESAZERINEERNFHNZERERE . TE AR 5 R AT 4R LR ET &

o BRI R AT R BB TEN VA
SNEBEE M (NFERRL S HAK - RIFVIRE) BRERMPINEZSESREATE -
ZIBERLEEAITAE > FERF AT AR £ -
Failure to maintain our product quality . Undertake strict quality control and product testing

o Carry out periodic product recall drill to improve the handling

process of product recalls shall they arise, hence minimising the
potential negative impact of any sub-standard product on the Group

° ETERNEERERS
o EHETERBEES  UBUEREE MG LR EERE 1M
BERAFEREREAEENETEECERERE

Failure to maintain production software security

The increase in using automated production method can reduce headcount

effectively. However, it increases the exposure to software malfunction risk.

The operation may be interrupted by a cyber-attack or false human input.
BEAGREERHZ2

iJJEI@)EHEimtiéﬂﬁﬁ}iﬁﬁ;&ﬁ"‘él%l%°ﬁﬁ P BN T A
e Y L i o 4 P AE (R 52 B AR AR TAOBR B A T A B8 R 7 R B

. Real-time power supply monitoring system

o Implement strict physical security control in restricted areas, e.g.
control room

o Use of firewall and antivirus software

o BRNHERERR

. MEREI@E (GIIEEE) EiEE Y ER 226
. R KB F ]

Failure to manage price fluctuation in cornstarch, corn kernel and
energy costs

Cornstarch and corn kernel prices are more volatile in recent years. We may
not pass the increased cost to customers immediately and resulted in a
significant loss.

. Monitor the commodity price movement closely
o Use derivatives
o Set energy consumption reduction target

o BY)SERERERES
. BRTEES

extended. In light of the current domestic economic environment, we
are probably required to use bank borrowings to fulfil our working capital
requirement. The approval of new bank facilities may be rejected or taken a
longer time beyond expected.

BLEDSMNIRE

HPTENFBESFER-—ERE - RABRIETEANIERBHE SR
B8 UL R o 1 E A B AR IRER - IR SE T E MM MITERK
MERMANEEESER - MIGRITRE T AR E M EPT R R B LETEH
Bfe

. i E BT AEFFE B AR

BEBEERRY  ERNMKRAERM A 2 E&KE
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TEEZRR EMEREAREBRL-

Failure to obtain external finance o Follow up long outstanding accounts receivable
o Increase the frequency of customer credit review

The profit margin of our industry is being suppressed over years. We | e Maintain sufficient banking facilities

observe that the recoverable period of certain customers is inevitably | e

Regular review the cash flow forecast

BRI R HASR (8 FE U
BREBRREANEARRT
R RHANRITHE
EfmsIRERETER
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Risk Review Report
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It is a trend that environmental protection-related rules and regulations will
be more stringent year by year. Government’s policy may change without
prior signals. Evolving standards, rules and regulations could result in
increased costs, regulatory actions, or in extreme cases, litigation or plant
closure.

BREBREEER
SIRIBREBBEORARRG —FLE—F B LEMRBE - BUFEUER

FITEZEAIRBIBR T & - RE RB K RO T EEE - D REFE WAL
A EAMBREETE TEBER N BTG ERERANEHA LR

Major risks Mitigation plans
FERR EFAER IR E
Breach of legal and regulatory requirements . Regular monitoring and review of changes in laws and regulations
o Act as a representative of industry group and participate in the

government policy/regulation-making stage

o EMEERRBEFIRSANEE
. EELERNRE EBRTEERANHERENA

Failure to promote new products

The Group may not execute a new product project as planned.
BERENER

FEEROERABBITHERER -

o Market research and feasibility study on potential new product

. HEENERETHHRAERAUTENRR

Failure to meet expansion target

Business combination, acquisition or formation of joint venture may not
achieve the expected outcome as planned.

BmEREHREER

EHAH BN SERER AL BEISTEARR

. Due diligence work on potential acquisition target
. Engage legal advisors to advise on investment or cooperation
proposal

. HETWHEERETERBD
. ZEFZEBMRENSGFEERHUER

In respect of the year ended 31 December 2020, the Board considered the internal
control system is effective and adequate. No significant areas of concern that might

affect the Group were identified.

It should be acknowledged that our risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate the risk of failure and can only provide
reasonable and not absolute assurance against material misstatement or loss.
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Corporate Governance Report
TEERIRS

The board (the “Board”) of directors (the “Directors”) of the Company understands
maintaining high corporate governance standard is crucial to success in the future.
The Board and its dedicated executive management teams always demonstrate its
commitment in upholding sound internal control standard, accountability and integrity
to the shareholders and stakeholders of the Company.

Corporate Governance Practices

The Company has complied with the applicable code provisions as set out in the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) contained in Appendix 14 of the
Rules Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing Rules”) on the Stock Exchange
of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the year under review and
has applied the principles as laid down with the aim of achieving a high level of
governance, except that Mr. Tian Qixiang (the chairman of the Board) did not attend
the 2020 annual general meeting (the “2020 AGM”) because of his other business
engagement.

Directors’ Securities Transactions

The Company has adopted its own Securities Dealing Code (the “Dealing Code”) on
terms no less exacting than the Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors
of Listed Issuers set out in Appendix 10 of the Listing Rules. The Dealing Code
applies to all Directors and to all employees who are informed that they are subject to
its provisions. The Company has made specific enquiry of all Directors and that all the
Directors confirmed their compliance with the required standard set out in the Dealing
Code throughout the year under review.

The Board

The Board is accountable to the shareholders of the Company (the “Shareholders”)
for its leadership and control and is collectively responsible for promoting the
Company’ long-term success and businesses by directing and supervising the
Company’s affairs. The Board is currently composed of four executive Directors and
three independent non-executive Directors. All members of the Board are subject to
the same duties of care and skill and fiduciary duties in upholding their accountability
to the Shareholders and in making decisions objectively in the best interests of the
Company and the Shareholders as a whole.

The Board, being the governing body of the Company, had led the management in
performing the following duties during the year under review:

° Formulating long-term and short-term strategic and business plans

o Approving the Group’s annual forecasts

o Evaluating the business performance of the Group

° Ensuring the integrity of financial information

° Evaluating the effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk
management systems

° Reviewing and monitoring the Group’s corporate governance policies and
practices and ensuring their implementation in accordance with the CG Code

o Ensuring the Group’s compliance with legal and regulatory requirements
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Corporate Governance Report
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To facilitate effective management, the Board has delegated certain functions
to various Board committees, namely, the Audit Committee, the Remuneration
Committee and the Nomination Committee. Each of these Board committees
operates under their respective written terms of reference on terms no less exacting
than the code provisions. Suggestions and conclusions of the Board committees will
be reported to the Board in its subsequent meeting.

In addition, the Board also delegates the day-to-day operational responsibilities to the
executive management team under the leadership of the Chief Executive Officer. The
Chief Executive Officer, working with the executive management team, is responsible
for the operations and business development of the Group.

Chairman and Chief Executive Officer

The roles of the Chairman and Chief Executive Officer are separate and not be
performed by the same individual. Mr. Tian Qixiang holds the position of the
Chairman, primarily responsible for the strategic positioning. Mr. Gao Shijun serves
as the Chief Executive Officer, primarily responsible for the operations and business
development of the Group.

There is no relationship (including financial, business, family or other material/
relevant relationship(s)) among the Directors and in particular, between Mr. Tian
Qixiang (Chairman) and Mr. Gao Shijun (Chief Executive Officer). The biographies of
the Directors are set out in the section headed “Directors and Senior Management
Profiles”.

Company Secretary

Mr. Leung Siu Hong, the company secretary of the Company, is a full-time employee
of the Group. He also serves as the secretary of each of the Audit Committee,
Nomination Committee, Remuneration Committee and other board committees as
organised by the Board from time to time. Mr. Leung is responsible for advising
the Board through the Chairman and/or the Chief Executive Officer on governance
matters, for example, to ensure Board procedures and applicable laws and
regulations are followed.

Mr. Leung is a fellow member of the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public
Accountants and Association of Chartered Certified Accountant. Mr. Leung is also
a fellow member of The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators) and The Hong Kong Institute of
Chartered Secretaries.

During the year under review, Mr. Leung took no less than 15 hours professional
training to update his skills and knowledge.
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2020 Board and Committee Meeting Attendance and Training
Record

During the year under review, the Board held four regular meetings and 3 other
additional meetings. The regular Board meetings are scheduled one year in advance
to facilitate maximum attendance by Directors. Other additional Board meetings are
convened as and when required.

Our Directors recognised the importance of participating in continuous professional
development (the “CPD”) to develop and refresh their knowledge and skill, which can
help them keep abreast of current trends and issues facing the Group and ensure
better fulfiiment of their duties as directors of the Company.

The attendance record of the Directors at Board meetings, Board committee
meetings and the 2020 AGM, together with the type of training received by each of
the Directors during the year under review are as follows:

“ECTFEREERNERTEE
B9 78 R 35 Ell sE 8%

REBFE EFTRTORERGTERIRAM
BINEZ -EFTTRF—FHEATHEFTTR
NEBR EUREENHFERRERS NER
B2 NEAMEMBIEEET RS-

EXERESUERBEXEUR (FESERR)) &
EREMMMARENEZE Ho]SER R
BRBE R AEEMEROREE TEREESE
FMBETERERBEEHNRE

EFNLBRFENESE SR EFTER58T
BRCEFCTFRVBFRGHFELE  URE
EERFTEZHNEIENNT

Board Meetings Board Committee Meetings
EES -6 EZ9Z8983
Audit  Remuneration Nomination Type of
Regular Others Committee Committee Committee 2020 AGM  CPD received
ZEI3E MEINGE
- Hitr ENZES HHESE REZEE RREFAE FEEEEN
Executive Directors: HiTES.
Mr. Tian Qixiang (Chairman) HE#RE (2R 4/4 33 N/ARER 1/1 11 X AB
M. Gao Shijun (Chief Executive Offcer) BBt (7HEY) 44 33 NAFER NATEE NATEE v AB
M. Liu Xianggang ARBEE 4/4 33 NARER NATER NATER / AB
M Yu Yingouan FESEE 44 33 NARER NATEE NATEE v AB
Independent non-executive Directors: B EHTES:
Professor Hua Qiang TERsR 4/4 33 33 1/1 11 / AB
M. Sun Mingdao BEEEE 44 33 33 1 1 v AB
Mr. Yue Kwal Wa, Ken REERE 44 33 3/3 17 17 / AB
A Attending briefings/seminars/webinars/forums/workshops/conferences relating to A HE S E RS o BRI E AR R
directors’ duties or other relevant topics g/ g @S wmE S TIES
gmy%
B Reading materials, such as newspapers, journals, business updates and regulatory B BHERAER CEFEANEEHFERNMS

updates relating to business, economy or directors’ duties

Board Diversity

With a view to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the Company
sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an essential element in supporting the
attainment of its strategic objectives and its sustainable development. In designing
the Board’s composition, Board diversity has been considered from a number
of aspects, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural, race, educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and independence under the
Group’s Board Diversity Policy as published on the Company’s website. All Board
appointments will be based on meritocracy, and candidates will be considered
against objective criteria, having due regard for the benefits of diversity on the Board.
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Director’s Appointments, Re-election and Removal

Pursuant to the Articles of the Company, every Director shall be subject to retirement
by rotation at least once every three years. Any Director appointed to fill a casual
vacancy or as an additional Director shall hold office only until the next following
general meeting of the Company and shall then be eligible for re-election at that
general meeting.

Independent non-executive Directors are appointed for a term of one year subject
to retirement by rotation and re-election in accordance with the Articles. Each
independent non-executive Director is required to inform the Company as soon as
practicable if there is any change that may affect his independence and must provide
an annual confirmation of his independence to the Company.

Accountability and Audit

The Directors acknowledge their responsibility for the preparation and the true and fair
presentation of the consolidated financial statements in accordance with Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRS”) and Hong Kong Accounting Standards,
using and applying consistently suitable accounting policies and making reasonable
and prudent judgement and estimates. The Board is not aware of any material
uncertainties relating to events or conditions that may affect the business of the
Company or cast doubts on its ability to continue as going concern.

The financial information and plans were discussed in the regular Board meetings.
The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are responsible for
explaining the latest business development and financial projections to the Directors.

During the year, the fee payable to the external auditor of the Group, SHINEWING
(HK) CPA Limited (“SHINEWING”), and its affiliated firms comprise service charges for
the following:

Audit service EIZR
Review of interim results ERPREE
Tax representative service MBI RIRE
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Risk Management and Internal Control

Each company and industry is associated with specific inevitable risks. We cannot
avoid them, but we adopt the best and responsible approach to manage and
overcome them. Our risk management and internal control systems have been in
place for many years, which provide the assurance of operation efficiency, work safety
and safeguarding of assets. The Board undertakes the responsibility for monitoring
the business risks and formulating plans and risk management policies to mitigate
potential risks and uncertainties that materially affect the business of the Group. The
Board is also responsible for evaluating the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group.

The management team is delegated by the Board to identify, manage and mitigate
material risks that might adversely affect our business. Once the management team
considers any newly-identified risk to be material, it will report such risk to the Board
for assessment and consideration of implementing a corresponding mitigation plan
where appropriate. However, it is possible that certain risks remain undetected or
unidentified and risks currently identified as immaterial may eventually turn out to
be material to our Group. In view of the inevitable nature of certain risks associated
with our business and industry, our risk management and internal control systems
are designed to manage rather than eliminate unavoidable risks of failure to achieve
the Group’s business objectives, and can only provide reasonable but not absolute
assurance against material misstatement or loss.

The following diagram shows the risk management hierarchy of the Group, which
provides information on our processes used to identify, evaluate and manage
significant risks:

The Board
EEg
e Monitoring business risks
SRFEFERE
e Formulating plans and risk management policies
7 518 K b B IR
e Evaluating effectiveness of risk controls and mitigation tools
ST B B 4l Fe B 4R T A BI AR
e Oversee and ensure the conduct of reviews on the Group’s risk management
and internal control systems at least annually
EREEREFEVHAEENAREERANBEERMRET —RER

Audit committee

ERERY

e Reviewing the Group’s risk management and internal control systems at least
annually
BEEVHAEENEREERANDGERFET —RNER

e Ensure the Group’s management has performed its duty in implementing the
Group’s risk management and internal control systems
ERAEEEEERTENTAEERREERASEERRNEE

e Considering major findings on risk management and internal control matters

EZRAREERNEEEEBNERER

Operational departments

EELRP

e |dentifying different risks and uncertainties in each operating cycle
# BB EEB PR E R E R & BERAE =R

e Reporting identified risks and significant adverse business factors
REEHIABREARTHEFRER

e Implementing risk controls and mitigation policies determined by the Board
HWITHESEEENEREERITEBR
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Operational departments

The function of operational management includes, inter alia, the identification of
potential risks and the implementation of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems, including risk controls and mitigation policies, as determined by the
Board in the course of daily operations.

The Group has built in the risk management culture from top to bottom. At
departmental level, the Group has prescribed, for each operational department, our
risk management principles, control procedures and code of conducts in order to
promote stronger understanding of stewardship responsibilities, delegation of duties,
and accountability for the Group’s risk management and internal control systems.
At staff level, the Group has laid down the business ethics policy, whistleblowing
policy and inside information escalation policy to ensure that sufficient controls are in
place to guide our employees’ behaviours through, and ensure timely and decisive
responses to, potential and emerging crises. To enforce our people’s individual risk
management capabilities and minimise any gap between the Board’s risk vision and
management’s actions, risk-related objectives are also integrated into employees’
annual performance goals and appraisal process.

The Group emphasises production safety and product safety in every aspect of our
operations. Safety always comes first.

The production safety function is carried out by the Safety Supervision Department
(the “SSD”) of the Group. The major functions of SSD includes, inter alia, the
promotion of risk management culture, compliance and regulatory standards. It also
carries out periodical drills on whole-factory scale, such as fire drill, prevention of dust
explosion review, safety review on working at height and use of corrosive chemicals,
regular staff examination on safety issues, etc.

The product safety function is carried by the Corporate Strategy and Development
Department (the “CSDD”). It carried out product recall drills periodically. In addition,
CSDD also assists our department heads to develop control procedures in their
respective departments.

The management believes that periodic drills provide our employees with
opportunities to train and test their reaction under different critical situations. In
addition, it also allows the Group to evaluate the effectiveness of each of our codes of
conduct and, risk management and internal control procedures.
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Internal audit is an important component of corporate risk management. The internal
audit function is performed by the Group’s Internal Audit Department (the “IAD”). The
major responsibilities of IAD are as follows:

(i) To carry out independent review on business activities;

(i) To analyse any potential control, operational, compliance and financial impact
on weaknesses;

(iif) To report findings on any weakness areas; and
(iv) To suggest improvement and remedy procedures.

Relationship of Audit Committee and the Board under risk
management framework

The Audit Committee is delegated with the responsibility to review the adequacy
and effectiveness of the Group’s internal control and risk management systems at
least annually. Periodical review reports and presentations from management are
provided to the Audit Committee in relation to internal control and risk management
matters. These reports and presentations allow the Audit Committee to assess the
effectiveness of the internal control and risk management systems. Whenever a
weakness of the Group’s internal control and risk management systems is identified,
the Audit Committee is responsible for discussing its potential financial impacts and
the corresponding remedy procedures with the Board and the management. The
Group had not been aware of any material internal control failings or weaknesses
affecting its overall operation during the year under review.

A Risk Review Report set out on pages 30 to 33 summarised our works conducted
and the evaluation of risks associated with the Group during the year under review.

Inside information

An inside information escalation policy is in place and sets out the principles and
internal control procedures for guiding our Directors and relevant employees on the
handling and dissemination of inside information in a timely manner and in adherence
to the relevant laws and regulations. The policy is subject to review by the Board from
time to time in view of, among others, relevant legal and regulatory updates.
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Audit Committee

The major roles and functions of the Audit Committee are to review and supervise the
financial reporting process, financial controls, internal control and risk management
system of the Group and to provide recommendations and advice to the Board on the
appointment, re-appointment and removal of external auditor as well as their terms of
appointment.

The Audit Committee of the Company currently consists of all independent non-
executive Directors namely Professor Hua Qiang, Mr. Sun Mingdao and Mr. Yue Kwai

Wa, Ken. Mr. Yue is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

During the year under review, the Audit Committee performed the following duties:

o Reviewed the Group’s annual report and interim report

. Reviewed the significant accounting policy and the impact of the adoption of
new financial reporting standards

. Discussed the audit issues with the external auditor

. Reviewed the annual internal audit plan

. Made recommendation of the appointment of external auditor

o Assessed the independence of external auditor

. Reviewed and discussed the internal audit reports and risk management

findings with our management

Remuneration Committee

The major function of the Remuneration Committee is to make recommendation to
the Board on the remuneration policy and remuneration structure for all Directors.

Our remuneration policy prohibited our Directors from determining his or her
own remuneration. Each Director’s remuneration package has been considered
and/or reviewed periodically with respect to his or her individual performance,
responsibilities, financial performance of the Group, market practice and other
applicable factors.

The Remuneration Committee currently consists of all independent non-executive
Directors namely Professor Hua Qiang, Mr. Sun Mingdao and Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken
and the Chairman of the Company, Mr. Tian Qixiang. Mr. Yue is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.
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The remuneration of executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors
for the financial year 2019 and 2020 are the same. On 18 December 2020, the
Remuneration Committee has reviewed the annual remuneration package of both
executive Directors and independent non-executive Directors for financial year 2021
and has recommended to the Board that the annual remuneration for Directors
should remain unchanged for the financial year 2021.

None of Director participated in any discussion about his own remuneration in the
meetings regarding the review of remuneration.

Nomination Committee

The major functions of the Nomination Committee are to review the structure and
composition of the Board, to implement and review the Board Diversity Policy, to
review and provide recommendations to the Shareholders on the terms of Director’s
service contract, and to assess the independence of the independent non-executive
Directors.

The Board adopts a board diversity policy that, in formally nominating a candidate
the Board shall access the suitability of a proposed candidate by taking into
account factors including but not limited to gender, age, cultural, race, educational
background, professional experience, skills, knowledge and independence. Summary
of the Group’s diversity policy is set out on page 36 above.

The Nomination Committee currently consists of all independent non-executive
Directors namely Professor Hua Qiang, Mr. Sun Mingdao and Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken
and the Chairman of the Company, Mr. Tian Qixiang. Mr. Yue is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.

During the year under review, the Nomination Committee performed the following
duties:

o Assessed the independence of the independent non-executive Directors

° Made recommendations on the re-election of retiring Directors to the Board

o Reviewed the background and suitability of a proposed independent non-
executive Director

o Evaluated the structure and composition of the Board

o Reviewed the Company’s Board Diversity Policy

° Reviewed the term of reference of the Nomination Committee

42  CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED S EEHZERARAS

BTEERBUFATESESN - NFR-F
TEEMBEENFMER - RFFF+Z
B+NB #MEZEGEERARNTESRIEGIIF
HOEFEN _T_—FHMBFENFEFHFNE
BORBREFEN _E_—EVREENESHE
RN AT A o

RistHM gzt AEEFR2HTRESH
#ooM o

RBZEEG

RYZEENTERESERESTTRBRAE
B ATREHESERES T EHR - BRES
BB ERRFIEmRREHERRSE L
R B IF T E ROVt

EFERMEFTAESEHR T EXARES
EFgHEAER EFFATELBREANGE
o EEARSE (BRRM) M5 F&e Xt
B -BED R FHEER R MHMEIBIIE-
FEEPZ TR BEZER I EXE36R -

BRl  RULZEENEREEEBIFNTES
BITERHIE - RIS RERRTERE  UIRER
BEFEHESSRE REEDRLEEGEIR-

REBEEE RREZETERT MRS :

. HMEBILIFRITEENBILM

. MEERTIEFONEFSFHERRZS

. FREEBIFATESFHIRENK
s

. SHEEFERE AR

. BEARABDEFENE L TIEHR

. REE B e MEEE



Corporate Governance Report
TEERWRS

Nomination Policy

The Company sets out below the nomination procedures and the process and criteria
contained in the Nomination Policy adopted by the Board.

Nomination Procedures and Process

The factors listed below would be used as reference by the Nomination Committee in
assessing the suitability of a proposed candidate.

The secretary of the Nomination Committee shall call a meeting of the Nomination
Committee, and invite nominations of candidates from members of the Board if any,
for consideration by the Nomination Committee prior to its meeting. The Nomination
Committee may also put forward candidates who are not nominated by members of
the Board.

o For filling a casual vacancy or appointing an additional member to the Board,
the Nomination Committee shall make recommendations for the Board’s
consideration and approval.

o For proposing candidates to stand for election at a general meeting,
the Nomination Committee shall make nominations to the Board for its
consideration and recommendation.

o A circular will be sent to the shareholders of the Company to provide
them with the name, brief biography, proposed remuneration, (where an
independent non-executive Director is to be nominated) independency
and other information of the proposing candidate in accordance with the
requirements of the applicable laws, rules and regulations including those of
the Listing Rules.

. A shareholder can serve a written notice to the Company for the attention of
the Company Secretary of his or her intention to propose a certain person for
election as a Director. This written notice, together with (i) the information of
the candidate as required to be disclosed under Rule 13.51(2) of the Listing
Rules and such other information as may be considered relevant to his or
her proposed election; and (i) the written consent by that person to the
publication of his or her personal data provided pursuant to (i) immediately
above, by the Company in its corporation communication documents in
compliance with the Listing Rules or as may be required by the Stock
Exchange at the principal place of business in Hong Kong of the Company
for a period of no earlier than the day after the despatch of the notice of
the meeting and ending no later than 7 days prior to the date of the general
meeting.

. The Board shall have the final decision on all matters relating to its
recommendation of candidates to stand for election at any general meeting.
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Criteria adopted by the Nomination Committee

o Business experience: The candidate should have significant experience
from a senior role in an area of business, public affairs or academia, relevant
to the Company. Awareness of the corn deep-processing industry would be
an advantage but not a requirement in all cases.

o Public board experience: The candidate should have relevant expertise and
experience earned as a Board member of a reputable listed company or from
a senior position in his or her industry, public affairs or academia.

o Diversity: The candidate should contribute to the Board being a diverse
body, with diversity reflecting gender, age, cultural and educational
background, ethnicity, professional experience, qualifications, skills and length
of service. Given the current composition of the Board, a female candidate
would be an advantage but not a requirement.

o Standing: The candidate should be of the highest ethical character and have
a strong reputation and standing, both personally and professionally, in his or
her fields.

° Time commitment: Each Board member must have sufficient time

available for the proper performance of his or her duties. Directors should be
sufficiently free of other commitments to be able to devote the time needed to
prepare for meetings and participate in induction, training, appraisal and other
Board associated activities.

o Independence: For the candidate who is proposed as an independent non-
executive Director, he or she must satisfy all the independence requirements
as set out in Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules. He or she must always be aware
of threats to his or her independency and avoid any conflict of interest with
the Company. He or she must be able to represent and act in the best
interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole.

These factors are for reference only, and not meant to be exhaustive and decisive.
The Nomination Committee may also consider such other factors as it may see fit
which are in the best interest of the Company and its shareholders as a whole. The
Nomination Committee and the Board may set specific requirements, depending on
the need of development of the Company, for the candidates.
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Shareholders

The Company welcomes enquires from Shareholders. The Board will review
Shareholders’ enquires on a regular basis. Specific enquiries and suggestions by
Shareholders can be sent in writing to the Company’s office at Suite 3312, Tower
1, Times Square, 1 Matheson Street, Causeway Bay, Hong Kong or by email
(ir@chinastarch.com.hk).

In case of shareholding enquires, Shareholders should direct their enquiries to the
Company’s Hong Kong branch share registrar and transfer office, Tricor Investor
Services Limited, via its website at www.tricoris.com, or by email to is-enquiries@hk.
tricorglobal.com, or dial its hotline at (852) 2980 1333 or go in person at its public
counter at Level 54, Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Hong Kong.

A Shareholder’s Communication Policy was adopted by the Board in order to
promote effective communications between Shareholders and the Company. This
policy is available on our website. The Company recognises the importance of
Shareholders’ privacy and will not disclose Shareholders’ information without their
consent, unless required by law.

Shareholder(s) holding not less than one tenth (10%) of the paid up capital of the
Company can convene an extraordinary general meeting by depositing the requisition
in writing to the Company. The procedures for Shareholder(s) to convene and present
proposals at general meetings, including proposing a person for election as a
Director, are available on our website.

Constitutional Documents

The Company did not make any changes to its constitutional document during the
year under review.
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Executive Directors

Mr. Tian Qixiang, aged 57, is the chairman of the Board and a member of each of
the Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Board. Mr. Tian is
principally responsible for the Group’s strategic positioning. He is also responsible
for formulating the Group’s business development objectives and ensuring that such
objectives are implemented by the Board accordingly. Mr. Tian is also a director
of Shandong Shouguang Juneng Golden Corn Development Co., Ltd. (“Golden
Corn”), an indirect wholly owned subsidiary of the Company, and Shouguang Golden
Corn Biotechnology Limited (“Golden Corn Biotech”), an indirect non-wholly owned
subsidiary of the Company, respectively.

Mr. Tian completed his study of Electricity and Water Irrigation from Water and
Electricity Machinery School in 1981 and graduated from The Shandong Province
Party Committee School of the People’s Republic of China with a diploma in
Economics Management in 1996. Mr. Tian obtained the qualification as a senior
economist in December 2002.

Mr. Tian is beneficially interested in approximately 54.58% of the issued share capital
of Merry Boom Group Limited (“Merry Boom”), a substantial shareholder of the
Company, and is also a director of Merry Boom.

Mr. Gao Shijun, aged 53, joined the Group in 1998 and is currently the chief
executive officer of the Company. Mr. Gao is principally responsible for overseeing
the Group’s operations and business management. Mr. Gao is also a director of the
following subsidiaries of the Company:

- Golden Corn

- Golden Corn Biotech

- Linging Deneng Golden Corn Bio Limited

- Shouguang Golden Far East Modified Starch Co., Ltd
- Shouguang Juneng Musashino Biotechnology Co., Ltd

Mr. Gao obtained an undergraduate degree in Physics in 1989 and a Master of
Business Administration degree in 2012 from Shandong University. He was also
awarded the qualification of senior engineer in 2010. Mr. Gao was appointed as the
permanent vice-president of China Starch Industry Association with a term from June
2016 to May 2021.

16

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED PR ZEREREAE

WITES

HE#EE 57T EFTER ’ﬁﬁiiﬁk
YLEEGRHFNEEENHE -HEETE
FEREBEBEEE - ﬁﬂﬁﬁﬁﬁ$$5¥ﬁ%
ERERNRELERELEERTHEETTHEN
T-BEETDHREAABBEE2ENBE AR
RENBEESERFAEARRE (FK) k&
REIREFZENBARDZIAEEREMBERE
RAT EEREMHE) WES-

HAEER—NAN—FELREKFEBESERTR
BOHFREERE —ANRFEERPEHEE
RUREZETER FECEEREFE R -H
FRENRZEZ-F+-BBESREHEMER -

BAELEBEREEAABTERBCEERTRA
= (MEE)) B31TIREL54.58% K ER A4 H
MES-

BHELE 53K R ANNENALER B
E$@Tﬁ&%ﬁ0m%$12%§%§$$@

WAEEMEBREER B AENABE QT LUTHE
REINESE !

— EEK

— TEREDRH

— A RES R REMERAS

— FHAEERENBENAERRAS

— SENEERBTEYRERARAR

BAaRER—
HEL20 BEENC
BEEBEBEIT2M IR _ZS—

ANNEELRARRE  BESY
T EMBLURAST
TEEESRT

A& - m%I%éE%¢Hﬂ%I¥ﬁ@§
BRER FRAZE—RERAEZE_—F
ER-



Directors and Senior Management Profiles
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Mr. Liu Xianggang, aged 52, joined the Group in 1998. Mr. Liu is also a director of
Golden Corn and Golden Corn Biotech respectively. He is responsible for the Group’s
production technology developments and cornstarch production.

Mr. Liu graduated from Shandong Industrial University (subsequently amalgamated
into Shandong University in 2000) in 1990 with an undergraduate degree in Industrial
Management, and obtained a postgraduate diploma in Industrial Economics from the
Economics School of Shandong University in 2003. Mr. Liu also obtained a Master of
Business Administration degree from Shandong University in 2012. Mr. Liu obtained
the qualification as senior engineer in 2002. Mr. Liu is the deputy supervisor of the
Cornstarch Professionals Committee of China Starch Industry Association.

Mr. Yu Yingquan, aged 52, is principally responsible for the overall management in
investment and corporate finance of the Group. Mr. Yu joined the Group in 2003. Mr.
Yu is also a director of Golden Corn and Golden Corn Biotech respectively.

Mr. Yu graduated from Shandong Hydro Institute in 1990 with a diploma in
Hydro Economic and Financial Management, and obtained a diploma in Finance
Management from Shandong Economics Management Institute in 1998. Mr. Yu
obtained the Certificate of Accounting Professional of the People’s Republic of China
issued by Finance Bureau of Shouguang City in 1997.

Independent Non-executive Directors

Professor Hua Qiang, aged 49, has been appointed as independent non-executive
Director on 17 May 2016. Professor Hua has been a professor of the School of
Biotechnology and the State Key Laboratory of Bioreactor Engineering of the East
China University of Science and Technology since 2008. He obtained a bachelor and
a master degree in chemical engineering (major in biochemical engineering) from
the Zhejiang University in 1993 and 1996 respectively. He also obtained a doctoral
degree in information engineering from the Kyushu Institute of Technology (Japan)
in 2000. He was appointed as an assistant professor of Institute for Advanced
Biosciences of the Keio University (Japan) from 2001 to 2004, and was appointed
as a postdoctoral scholar of the Department of Bioengineering of the University of
California, San Diego from 2004 to 2007. He had also been a medical research
scientist for Sanford Burnham Prebys Medical Discovery Institute (formerly known as
“Burnham Institute for Medical Research”) (the United State of America) from 2007 to
2008.
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Mr. Sun Mingdao, aged 72, has been appointed as an independent non-executive
Director on 5 September 2013. Mr. Sun also serves as a member of each of the
Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee of the Board.
Mr. Sun was appointed as the Eighth Session’s permanent deputy chief secretary
of China Starch Industry Association for a term from June 2016 to May 2021. Mr.
Sun was appointed as a deputy supervisor of the Expert Committee of China Starch
Industry Association in November 2015. Mr. Sun was also appointed as a vice
director of the Technical Committee on Food-grade Starch and Starch Derivatives
under the Standardization Administration of the People’s Republic of China in
November 2015.

Mr. Sun had been a deputy director of the research centre and a vice general
manager of Wuhan Huali Environmental Technology Co., Ltd. from 2001 to 2007.
Mr. Sun had served as a standing committee member, and the Sixth and Seventh
Sessions’ chief secretary of China Starch Industry Association respectively.

Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken, aged 55, has been appointed as an independent non-
executive Director on 5 September 2007. Mr. Yue also serves as the chairman of
each of the Audit Committee, Nomination Committee and Remuneration Committee
of the Board.

Mr. Yue is serving as an executive director, the chairman, the chief executive officer,
the company secretary and the compliance officer of Roma Group Limited (“Roma”).
He is an independent non-executive director of Major Holdings Limited (“Major”). He
was an independent non-executive director of Manfield Chemical Holdings Limited
(“Manfield”) for the period from 6 November 2015 to 31 December 2018. The shares
of Roma, Major and Manfield are listed on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited.

Mr. Yue is a certified public accountant with solid experience in accounting, auditing
and corporate finance. Mr. Yue is also a member of the American Institute of Certified
Public Accountants and the Colorado State Society of Certified Public Accountants.
He is also holding a specialist certificate and a practicing certificate in corporate
finance of the Hong Kong Securities Institute.

Senior Management

All the executive Directors are responsible for the various aspects of the business and
operation of the Group. These executive Directors are regarded as the member of the
senior management team of the Group.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Independent Auditor’'s Report
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
FERERERAS

(incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
Opinion

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of China Starch Holdings
Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages
54 to 113, which comprise the consolidated statement of financial position as
at 31 December 2020, and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income, consolidated statement of changes in equity and
consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended, and notes to the
consolidated financial statements,
policies.

including a summary of significant accounting

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of the
consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 December 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”)
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”) and
have been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the
Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
(*HKSASs”) issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are
further described in the Auditor’'s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Group in
accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (the
“Code”) and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with
the Code. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion.

Key Audit Matters

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgement, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
These matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the consolidated financial
statements as a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
separate opinion on these matters.
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Valuation of property, plant and equipment

Refer to note 16 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies

on pages 64 to 65.

ME B E KRR FENEE

FE2RE N BRRI 16 E64E65EM G 51
HR o

The key audit matter
FAREtEIR

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BPREAREENSZE

We identified the valuation of property, plant and equipment as a
key audit matter because of its significance to the consolidated
financial statements.

BErME -BEARENGHEHSHYBRENEEZS  HMAE
BHDTERHEETEE

As at 31 December 2020, carrying amount of property, plant and
equipment is approximately RMB2,007,661,000. It involves a
significant degree of judgement by the management in assessing
whether there are any indicators of impairment for property, plant
and equipment at the end of the reporting period which may
affect the carrying amount of property, plant and equipment.
Therefore, it comes to our concern that there is a risk of valuation
of property, plant and equipment.

RATECEFE+ZA=+—H ME - -BREKRRENREENS
ANE¥2,007,661,0007c° BB REET TG E - BEKREZE
RBEMFREZETEEAIEEEYE - BEARERIEER
TENBETREFHEARAE AL RMNEEREYE-
o B e 58 1 AE AT A (B Y LB ©

Our audit procedures were designed to evaluate the
management’s assessment of the indicators of impairment
and, where such indicators were identified, assessed the
management’s impairment testing and identify any valuation risk
of property, plant and equipment.
EMNBHARFHNRGT AT ZEIEE R E TR AT EEBET
> REREBBMRNERT > 57 E 2 EPrE L AR E R
o U I ~ R e 5% R B (0 (5 (B LB

We have discussed with the management on the key
assumptions used in the management’s assessment of the
indicators of impairment. We have also performed check on
sample basis by physically inspecting whether the property, plant
and equipment are kept in a good condition.
RMEREEEmEEE MO RENREMERNEEZR
FoRMTHMEENE - BERZFBETEMRDE  UHEIEE
BEBRNREFMIR

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

Refer to note 20 to the consolidated financial statements and the accounting policies

on pages 65 to 67.

& 5 MR B iR (B 5T

A B E AN 20K EOSTOTEN B
B o

The key audit matter
ATt E1E

How the matter was addressed in our audit
BHHPEEEMEENSE

We have identified the impairment assessment of trade
receivables as a key audit matter because the loss allowance
involves significant degree of management estimation.
HRGEEFEIREEENERMGE HMPERTCEZERAR
R BT h AR RS HE

As at 31 December 2020, the Group had trade receivables of
approximately RMB196,187,000. Expected credit loss (the “ECL”)
impairment model has been adopted for impairment assessment
of which it involved significant management judgement on
historical loss rate based on the provision matrix using past
due information and forward-looking information based on both
current and forecast general economic conditions.

A ZETERF+_RA=+—H> BEEEBZERUTFOAER
#196,187,0007T ° FEEAE E 518 (TFRHAE B 18 BERIE
HABERE L BT PR EEEREBEGEEENBRIRE
1 e iR 15 B Al K TR 5t — AR A E MO B A AT BRI B E SRS 18
FEHNE ARG -

Our procedures were designed to review the management’s
process of determination of historical loss rate and forward-
looking information for performing of loss allowance assessment
and challenge the reasonableness of the methods and
assumptions used to estimate the loss allowance.
BEMBAREFENRFANABNEEEEEELBEBE AR
ERLUETHEEEETGNBRE  WH B EEERTEA
A ERBENSEMREHERR

We have challenged the assumptions and critical judgement
used by the management by comparing the management’s
expectation of the amounts of trade receivables which are unlikely
to be recovered in the foreseeable future at current carrying
amount based on ageing of receivables at year end, cash
received after year end, as well as the recent creditworthiness of
each debtor and forward-looking information on macro economy
and industry performance.
BMEBLERERERFINESRR R HEBERER
258 B A HI BT B 5 o IR F R FEWGIERIBREG ~ KRB U
BIREURESEHBNOABRNERAERBRRBRSE RITER
RMATEMEER ZE B AR ERBAREMBER TR KK
QeI
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Information Other than the Consolidated Financial
Statements and Auditor’s Report Thereon

The directors of the Company are responsible for the other information. The other
information comprises all of the information included in the annual report other than
the consolidated financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information and, in doing so, consider whether the
other information is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial statements
or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We
have nothing to report in this regard.

Responsibilities of Directors of the Company and Audit
Committee for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors of the Company determine is
necessary to enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free
from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors of the Company
are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability to continue as a going concern,
disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group
or to cease operations, or have no realistic alternative but to do so.

Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group’s financial reporting
process.
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Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated
Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due
to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion, solely
to you, as a body, in accordance with our agreed terms of engagement, and for no
other purpose. We do not assume responsibility towards or accept liability to any
other person for the contents of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise
from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they
could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on
the basis of these consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgement
and maintain professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

52

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform
audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of
not detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for
one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not
for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group’s
internal control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reasonableness of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the
directors of the Company.

Conclude on the appropriateness of the Company’s directors’ use of
the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the audit evidence
obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions
that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability to continue as a going
concern. If we conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are required
to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate,
to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going concern.
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o Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion on
the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible
for our audit opinion.

We communicate with audit committee regarding, among other matters, the planned
scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide audit committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with audit committee, we determine those matters
that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of
the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe these matters
in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure about the
matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter should
not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing
so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Mr. Kwan Chi Fung.

SHINEWING (HK) CPA Limited
Certified Public Accountants

Kwan Chi Fung

Practising Certificate Number: PO6614

Hong Kong
19 March 2021
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Consolidated Statement of Profit or Loss and Other Comprehensive Income

9:':

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZTZ

HAth#r & W

TE+TR=t—HIEFE

1R

2020 2019
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
[hE AR¥F AR#FT
Revenue KA 5 8,892,261 6,750,401
Cost of sales THE A (8,332,486) (6,397,397)
Gross profit ER 559,775 353,004
Distribution expenses DHEE (184,229) (153,939)
Administrative expenses THER (194,917) (164,621)
Impairment losses on financial assets THMEERESR 20 - (13,777)
Other net income HMEA 6 80,871 84,725
Operating profit REF) 261,500 105,392
Finance income BRE A 7 15,084 19,540
Finance expenses MEEA 8 (5,346) (1,661)
Profit before income tax FREFIS T AIF)E 9 271,238 123,271
Income tax expense Frigi sz 12 (64,199) (25,175)
Profit and total comprehensive income EEEMN B RGEWELEEE
for the year 207,039 98,096
Attributable to: IR R ISR, -
Owners of the Company KRBHEA A 190,120 96,847
Non-controlling interests JEVER IR 16,919 1,249
207,039 98,096
Earnings per share attributable to EAREEAEEERERN
owners of the Company
Basic and diluted earnings per share (RMB) &REAKREERF (AR 13 0.0317 0.0162
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

SHP AR R

As at 31 December 2020 W_Z_Z&HE+_F=+—H

2020 2019
—EEHE —E-NE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
B 5% AREFT AREFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets ERBEE
Property, plant and equipment ME-BREREE 16 2,007,661 2,085,992
Right-of-use assets FREEE 17 429,830 400,543
Deposits for acquisition of property, BB~ B R
plant and equipment RENRES - 27,218
Investments in equities RS 18 1,940 -
Deferred tax assets IRIERRIEE & 25 64,230 79,435
Total non-current assets EREEELEE 2,503,661 2,593,188
Current assets REBEE
Inventories E#8 19 811,107 538,777
Trade and other receivables B 5 K E AR 20 896,338 841,083
Security deposit for land auction HE L HIRES 21 10,401 -
Pledged bank deposits BIEHIRTTER 23 4,353 5,669
Fixed deposits EHER 23 - 260,000
Cash and cash equivalents BERIBEEEY 23 341,632 185,357
Total current assets RBEEMSE 2,063,831 1,831,786
Total assets BEEE 4,567,492 4,424,974
EQUITY R
Equity attributable to owners of the EATEE AEGEERS
Company
Share capital RZN 24 532,500 532,656
Other reserves Hits 379,221 368,526
Retained earnings REBERF 2,065,586 1,920,058
2,977,307 2,821,240
Non-controlling interests IR R 156,826 139,907
Total equity e 3,134,133 2,961,147
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Consolidated Statement of Financial Position

B EINRR

As at 31 December 2020 RW_Z_ZTHF+_B=+—H

2020 2019
—E_EHE ZE-NE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
[hE AR¥F AR#FT
LIABILITIES afi
Non-current liabilities ERBAER
Deferred income IRIEUR A 28 303,043 349,074
Deferred tax liabilities FIERIBE (& 25 58,311 38,104
Lease liabilities HEas 26 497 1,218
Total non-current liabilities EREIEELEEE 361,851 388,396
Current liabilities mENAE
Trade and other payables B 5 R EHMEN R 29 547,742 691,914
Advances from customers ZEREH 30 331,522 172,375
Income tax payable FETFR1ZHR 40,710 35,430
Borrowings EEN 27 126,849 151,354
Employee housing deposits BITREEREE 31 23,741 23,741
Derivative financial instruments TEEmTA 22 341 -
Lease liabilities HEas 26 603 617
Total current liabilities MENBRLE%E 1,071,508 1,075,431
Total liabilities BEELE 1,433,359 1,463,827
Total equity and liabilities Kk aFEERE 4,567,492 4,424,974

Approved and authorised for issue by the board of directors on 19 March 2021. EFEN B2 F=A+NBMAEREET

o
Tian Qixiang Yu Yingquan
HE# FHER
Director Director
EE EE

The notes on pages 59 to 113 are an integral part of these consolidated financial — $59F 1138 MM sE s & H A FEIRFTHIEH P EEH o

statements.
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Consolidated Statement of Changes

$ / \ n\l:lm

in Equity

For the year ended 31 December 2020 HEZZIEZHE+ZHA=+—HIEFE
Non-
Share Share Special Capital Statutory Retained controlling Total
capital premium reserve reserve reserve earnings Total interests equity
FEER
[z RIVER HRlE B EEGRE RERF @5t BEL o i+h
Note RMB’000 RMB'000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
Wi ARBTR ARETR AREBTR ARETRT ARETRT ARETR ARETR ARETRn AREBTR
(note i) (note (i)
(H3E0) (3Ei)
At 1 January 2019 RZE-nF—-F—-H 532,656 39,369 27,080 56,196 278,846 1,863,538 2,787,685 138,658 2,926,343
Profit and total comprehensive income FEEFBRGARERE
for the year - - - - - 96,847 96,847 1,249 98,096
2018 final dividend “B-\FERERE 14 - (39,369) - - - (23,929) (63,292) - (63,292)
Transfer to statutory reserves BLLRRE - - - - 6,404 (6,404) - - -
At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RIZ-NE+Z H +-Bk&
ZZZE-R 532,656 - 21,080 56,196 285,250 1,920,058 2,821,240 139,907 2,961,147
Share buy-backs RIDEIE (156) - - - - (47) (203) - (203)
Profit and total comprehensive income for the year  AEEFIEREE KRG EE - - - - - 190,120 190,120 16,919 207,039
2019 final dividend “B-AERERE 14 - - - - - (33,850) (33,850) - (33,850)
Transfer to statutory reserves BLLTRE - - - - 10,695 (10,695) - - -
At 31 December 2020 RIBZEE+ZA=+-H 532,500 - 27,080 56,196 205,945 2,065,586 2,977,307 156,826 3,134,133
Notes: MIsE
0] Under the Cayman Islands Companies Law, the share premium of the Company is (i) RIBFEESHERBE EERAMAIMARD

available for paying distributions or dividends to shareholders subject to the provisions
of its Memorandum or Articles of Association and provided that immediately following
the distribution of dividends, the Company is able to pay its debts as they fall due in the
ordinary course of business.

(i) Special reserve represents (a) the difference between the nominal value of the
share capital and share premium issued by the Company and the aggregate of the
share capital and share premium of the subsidiaries acquired upon the Group’s
reorganisation; and (b) the difference between the consideration paid by the direct
subsidiary for the entire registered capital of the indirect subsidiary and the amount of
registered capital of the indirect subsidiary.

(i

ESRRT A RB R EERTHERR
ﬁ/f&:w&ﬁﬁ S EREREREDIKE &

NEAAENEEENAEEBRIRANGE
o

BRHEEIE (QERBMETRANEER
Rn s EERNERSHERRUENINE R
BN R A R 1D i EARE 2 IR Z 58 5 K(b)
ERNBARMNEENBARZMEMES
SXYHAEREERBARNEMERZMH
BIEE
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Consolidated Statement of Cash Flows
BHEERER

For the year ended 31 December 2020 #HE-Z_ZTF+_F=+—HILFE

2020 2019
—EZTF —E-NE
Notes RMB’000 RMB’000
b= AR%FT AR®F T
Cash flows from operating activities RETHMHERE
Cash generated from/(used in) operations KEELE S (ER) MRS 23(b) 268,965 (135,760)
Income tax paid EHMAER (23,507) (60,622)
Interest paid BAFE (5,307) (1,287)
Interest received BUFHIE 15,084 19,540
Net cash generated from/(used in) EESESE S (ER) B
operating activities IREF58 255,235 (178,129)
Cash flows from investing activities KREZHNRERE
Payments for property, plant and equipment  #)% « B K 58 5 BRI (263,980) (293,767)
Deposits paid for acquisition of property, WEME - BEERENENR
plant and equipment BE - (225,217)
Payment for security deposit for land auction 3 & T #BIRE S RIE (10,401) -
Acquisition of right-of-use assets WHEFREEE (38,988) (174,081)
Purchase of equity investments EERELRE (2,000) -
Government grant received BT #EED 12,790 63,913
Proceeds from disposals of property, KEHEWE WERRENFT
plant and equipment (CEN 1,635 46,371
Decrease in fixed deposits EHITFEFUR D 260,000 80,000
Decrease in pledged bank deposits BIRRIRITERUR LD 1,316 393
Net cash used in investing activities KREEEGANIREFRE (39,628) (502,388)
Cash flows from financing activities RMEFHNRAERE
Proceeds from bank borrowings KEIBITEROMER 193,000 151,354
Repayment of bank borrowings BERITER (217,505) -
Dividends paid BT S (33,850) (63,292)
Share buy-backs baliaEl (203) -
Repayment of government loan BEBRRER - (4,432)
Lease payments GEN=—RNEN
— Capital elements — K& E D (735) (615)
— Interest elements R il (39) (18)
Repayment of employee housing deposits BEEIRERERSE® - (27)
Net cash (used in)/generated MEEE (FR) EE
from financing activities BIREF58 (59,332) 82,970
Net increase/(decrease) in cash and cash RENMREEEBY
equivalents #an, CRb) 7$ 28 156,275 (597,547)
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 January R—BE—HBNRERIREEEY 185,357 782,904
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 December W+ _-_B=+—HMNESX
REEEY 23(a) 341,632 185,357

58  CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED BB ZIRARAT



General information

China Starch Holdings Limited (the “Company”) was incorporated in the
Cayman Islands under the Cayman Islands Companies Law as an exempted
company with limited liability on 29 November 2006. Its ultimate holding
company is Merry Boom Group Limited (“Merry Boom”), a company
incorporated in the British Virgin Islands (the “BVI”). The address of its
registered office and principal place of business of the Company are
disclosed in the “Corporate Information” section to the annual report. The
principal activities of the Company and its subsidiaries (collectively, the
“Group”) are the manufacture and sale of cornstarch, lysine, starch-based
sweetener, modified starch and its related products.

The Company has its primary listing on the Main Board of The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Renminbi (‘“RMB”),
unless otherwise stated.

Summary of significant accounting policies

The principal accounting policies applied in the preparation of these
consolidated financial statements are set out below. These policies have been
consistently applied to all the years presented, unless otherwise stated.

21 Basis of preparation

The consolidated financial statements of the Company have been
prepared in accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (‘HKFRSs”) (which include all Hong Kong
Financial Reporting Standards, Hong Kong Accounting Standards
(*HKASs”) and Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute
of Certified Public Accountants (the “HKICPA”). In addition, the
consolidated financial statements include applicable disclosures
required by the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on the Stock
Exchange and by the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.

The consolidated financial statements have been prepared on the
historical cost convention, as modified by the revaluation of certain
financial assets and financial liabilities measured at fair value.

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRSs
requires the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also
requires management to exercise its judgement in the process of
applying the Group’s accounting policies. The areas involving a higher
degree of judgement or complexity, or areas where assumptions and
estimates are significant to the consolidated financial statements are
disclosed in note 4.

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

aHPHERRMEE

2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued) 2 FEGHHEME (&
2.1  Basis of preparation (Continued) 21 IREEE (E
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures 211 EFHERKEZEE
(@) New and amended standards adopted by the Group (a) 7K 5 [ AT FR AN B9 T 5T K
AEAEETERY
The following new amendments to standards have been UTAEREBNRAREK
adopted by the Group for the first time for the current FEEHREHHEL
financial year: 5T :
Amendments to Definition of Material EEQHEN EANTR
HKAS 1 and FIRREE
HKAS 8 R
ELwA ]
Amendments to Definition of a Business EEUBRE £BNES
HKFRS 3 ER B35
A5
Amendments to Interest Rate Benchmark Reform BEMBRE AEEENE
HKFRS 9, HKAS 39, ERE0%
and HKFRS 7 BEGHE
EIER T
BENBR
EEEIEE
A )
The adoption of these new and amended standards and RNz E W] RS ERT
interpretation does not have any significant impact to the HARZEFGHAE
results and financial position of the Group. B 09 248 e B iR R4S
RAEMEREZE-
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AP ERRMEE

2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

21 Basis of preparation (Continued)
2.1.1 Changes in accounting policy and disclosures

©)

New standards and interpretations not yet adopted

The Group has not applied the following amendments to
HKFRSs which were issued before 31 December 2020 and
are pertinent to its operations but not yet effective:

2

FEGHBRBE (&

2.1
2.1.1

Amendments to
HKFRS 3

Amendments to
HKFRS 10 and
HKAS 28

Amendments to
HKFRS

Amendments to
HKAS 1

Amendments to
HKAS 16

Reference to the conceptual
framework’

Sale or contribution of assets
between an investor and its
associate or joint venture®

Annual improvements to HKFRSs
2018 - 2020 cycle’

Classification of liabilities as current
or non-current?

Property, plant and equipment:
Proceeds before intended use’

Amendments to
HKAS 37

Onerous contracts: cost of fulfilling a
contract’

g Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2022

2 Effective for accounting periods beginning on or after
1 January 2023

B Effective date to be determined

The Group anticipate that the application of these new
amendments or interpretation to standards will have no
material impact on the results and the financial position of the
Group.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

aHPHERRMEE

2

62

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.2

2.3

2.4

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Subsidiaries

A subsidiary is an entity over which the Group has control. The Group
controls an entity when the Group is exposed to, or has rights to,
variable returns from its involvement with the entity and has the ability
to affect those returns through its power over the entity. Subsidiaries
are consolidated from the date on which control is transferred to the
Group. They are deconsolidated from the date that control ceases.

Intra-group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated unless the transaction provides evidence
of an impairment of the transferred asset. When necessary, amounts
reported by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the
Group’s accounting policies.

Profit or loss and each component of other comprehensive income of
subsidiaries are attributed to the owners of the Company and to the
non-controlling interests. Total comprehensive income of subsidiaries
is attributed to the owners of the Company and to the non-controlling
interests even if this results in the non-controlling interests having a
deficit balance.

Separate financial statements

Investments in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment.
Cost includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results
of subsidiaries are accounted for by the Company on the basis of
dividend received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the investments in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving a dividend from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in
the consolidated financial statements of the investee’s net assets
including goodwiill.

Segment reporting

The chief operating decision-maker is comprised of the executive
directors of the Company and the senior executive management of
the Group. Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent
with the internal reporting provided to the chief operating decision-
maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments. Information relating to
segment assets and liabilities is not disclosed as such information is
not regularly reported to the chief operating decision-maker.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AP ERRMEE

2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.5

Foreign currency translation

(a)

(b)

(c)

Functional and presentation currency

ltems included in the financial statements of each of the
Group’s entities are measured using the currency of the
primary economic environment in which the entity operates
(the “functional currency”). The consolidated financial
statements are presented in RMB, which is the Group’s
functional and presentation currency.

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the
functional currency using the exchange rates prevailing
at the dates of the transactions or valuation where items
are remeasured. Foreign exchange gains and losses
resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from
the translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary
assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies are
recognised in profit or loss.

Group companies

The results and financial position of all the Group entities
(none of which has the currency of a hyperinflationary
economy) that have a functional currency different from the
presentation currency are translated into the presentation
currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each statement of financial
position presented are translated at the closing rate
at the end of the reporting period; and

(i) income and expenses for each profit or loss are
translated at average exchange rates (unless
this average is not a reasonable approximation
of the cumulative effect of the rates prevailing
on the transaction dates, in which case income
and expenses are translated at the dates of the
transactions).

On consolidation, exchange differences arising from the
translation of the net investment in foreign operations are
taken to other comprehensive income. When a foreign
operation is partially disposed of or sold, exchange
differences that were recorded in equity are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the gain or loss on sale.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

aHPHERRMEE

2

64

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.6

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Property, plant and equipment

Property, plant and equipment, other than those under construction,
are stated at historical cost less depreciation and impairment loss.
Property, plant and equipment under construction for production or
administrative purposes, or for purposes not yet determined, are
carried at cost, less any recognised impairment loss. Property, plant
and equipment under construction is classified to the appropriate
category of property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for intended use. Depreciation of these assets, on the same
basis as other property assets, commences when the assets are
ready for their intended use.

Historical cost includes expenditure that is directly attributable to the
acquisition of the items.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or
recognised as a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is
probable that future economic benefits associated with the item will
flow to the Group and the cost of the item can be measured reliably.
The carrying amount of the replaced part is derecognised. All other
repairs and maintenance are charged to profit or loss during the
financial period in which they are incurred.

Depreciation on property, plant and equipment is calculated using the
straight-line method to allocate their cost to their residual values over
the estimated useful lives, as follows:

Buildings 15 - 35 years
Plant and machinery 5 - 12 years
Motor vehicles 6 years
Other machinery 4 -10 years

The assets’ residual values and useful lives are reviewed, and
adjusted if appropriate, at the end of each reporting period.

An asset’s carrying amount is written down immediately to its
recoverable amount if the asset’s carrying amount is greater than its
estimated recoverable amount (note 2.7).

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing the

proceeds with the carrying amount and are recognised within ‘Other
net income’ in profit or loss.
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Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

AP ERRMEE

2

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.7

2.8

Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be
recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised immediately in profit
or loss for the amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds
its recoverable amount. The recoverable amount is the higher of an
asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use. For the purposes
of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest level for
which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered
impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at
each reporting date.

Financial instruments

Financial assets are classified into three principal categories:
measured at amortised cost, at fair value through other
comprehensive income (“FVOCI”) and at fair value through profit or
loss (“FVPL”).

An investment in equity, including listed and unlisted, is measured
at FVPL unless the equity investment is not held for trading purpose
and on initial recognition of the investment the Group makes an
irrevocable election to designated the investment at FVOCI (non-
recycling) such that subsequent changes in fair value are recognised
in other comprehensive income. Dividends from an investment in
equity securities, irrespective of whether classified as at FVPL or
FVOCI, are recognised in profit or loss as other income in accordance
with the policy set out note 2.22.

Trade receivables arising from contracts with customers are initially
measured in accordance with revenue recognition policy (note 2.21).
Derivative financial instrument is measured at FVPL (note 2.10).
All other recognised financial assets (including trade and other
receivables, cash and cash equivalents, security deposit for land
auction, pledged bank deposits and fixed deposits) of the Group are
subsequently measured at amortised cost.

Financial liabilities, such as trade and other payables (note 2.15),
excluding other tax payables, borrowings (note 2.16), lease liabilities
(note 2.24) and employee housing deposits, are measured at
amortised cost.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.9

2.10

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Credit risk and impairment of financial assets

The Group’s financial assets measured at amortised cost, such as
trade and other receivables, are subject to the Group’s expected
credit loss (the “ECL”) model. While cash and cash equivalents,
pledged bank deposits and fixed deposits are also subject to the
impairment review, the identified loss allowance was immaterial. The
impairment methodology applied depends on whether there has been
a significant increase in credit risk. Note 3.1(b) set out the details how
the Group determines whether there has been a significant increase
in credit risk.

Financial assets measured at fair value, such as futures contracts, are
not subject to ECL assessment.

For trade receivables, the Group applies the simplified approach to
providing loss allowance at an amount equal to lifetime ECLs for
its financial assets at initial recognition and through its life of the
asset. A provision matrix is determined based on historical overdue
pattern, shared risk characteristics, probability-weighted estimate of
credit losses and is adjusted for forward-looking estimates. At each
reporting date the above parameters are updated.

Financial assets (and the related impairment allowances) are normally
written off, either partially or in full, when there is no realistic prospect
of recovery. Subsequent recoveries of an asset that was previously
written off are recognised as a reversal of impairment in profit or loss
in the period in which the recovery occurs.

For other receivables and security deposit for land auction, the Group
recognises a loss allowance equal to 12-month ECLs unless there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since initial recognition,
in which case the loss allowance measured at an amount equal to
lifetime ECLs.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivative financial instruments, such as futures contract, are
recognised at fair value. At the end of each reporting period the
fair value is remeasured. The gain or loss on remeasurement to fair
value is recognised immediately in profit or loss, except where the
derivatives qualify for hedging accounting, in which case recognition
of any resultant gain or loss depends on the nature of the item being
hedged.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.11

2,12

2.13

2.15

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value.
Cost is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of
finished goods and work in progress comprises raw materials, direct
labour, other direct costs and related production overheads (based
on normal operating capacity). Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable
variable selling expenses.

Trade and other receivables

A receivable is recognised when the Group has an unconditional
right to receive consideration. A right to receive consideration is
unconditional if only the passage of time is required before payment
of that consideration is due.

Receivables are stated at amortised cost using the effective interest
method less loss allowance (note 2.9).

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents include cash at bank and on hand,
demand deposits, and short-term, highly liquid investments that are
readily convertible into known amount of cash which are subject to
an insignificant risk of changes in value, with original maturity of three
months or less.

Share capital

Ordinary shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs, directly
attributable to the issue of new shares or options are shown in equity
as a deduction, net of tax, from the proceeds.

Trade and other payables

Trade payables are obligations to pay for goods or services that have
been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade and other payables are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using effective interest
method.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.16

2.17

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction
costs incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised
cost. Any difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs)
and the redemption value is recognised in profit or loss over the
period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that
some or all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee
is deferred until the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no
evidence that it is probable that some or all of the facility will be
drawn down, the fee is capitalised as a pre-payment for liquidity
services and amortised over the period of the facility to which it
relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liability unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least twelve
months after the end of the reporting period.

Borrowing costs

General and specific borrowing costs directly attributable to the
acquisition, construction or production of qualifying assets, which are
assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get ready
for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets,
until such time as the assets are substantially ready for their intended
use or sale.

Investment income earned on the temporary investment of specific

borrowings pending their expenditure on qualifying assets is
deducted from the borrowing costs eligible for capitalisation.

All other borrowing costs are recognised in profit or loss in the period
in which they are incurred.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred tax
The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax.
Tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates
to items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in
equity. In this case, the tax is also recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity, respectively.

(a)

(b)

Current income tax

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis
of the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the end
of reporting period in the countries where the Company’s
subsidiaries operate and generates taxable income.
Management periodically evaluates positions taken in tax
returns with respect to situations in which applicable tax
regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions
where appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be
paid to the tax authorities.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised, using the liability method, on
temporary differences arising between the tax bases of
assets and liabilities and their carrying amounts in the
consolidated financial statements. However, deferred tax
is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an
asset or a liability in a transaction other than a business
combination that at the time of the transaction affects
neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss. Deferred tax is
determined using tax rates (and laws) that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of reporting period and
are expected to apply when the related deferred tax asset is
realised or the deferred tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it
is probable that future taxable profit will be available against
which the temporary differences can be utilised.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.18 Current and deferred tax (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Deferred tax (Continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are provided on taxable temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries, except
for deferred tax liability where the timing of the reversal of
the temporary difference is controlled by the Group and it is
probable that the temporary difference will not reverse in the
foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised on deductible temporary
differences arising from investments in subsidiaries only to
the extent that it is probable the temporary difference will
reverse in the foreseeable future and there is sufficient taxable
profit available against which the temporary difference can be
utilised.

Offsetting

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a
legally enforceable right to offset current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when the deferred taxes assets and
liabilities relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the taxable entity or different taxable
entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a
net basis.

2.19 Employee benefit

(a

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Pension obligations

The Group sponsors various defined contribution plans for
its employees in the People’s Republic of China (the “PRC”).
These plans are organised by the relevant municipal and
provincial governments based on certain percentage of the
relevant employees’ monthly salaries. The municipal and
provincial governments undertake to assume the retirement
benefit obligations payable to all existing and future retired
employees under these plans and the Group has no further
constructive obligation for post-retirement benefits beyond
the contributions made.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefit (Continued)

(a

(b)

Pension obligations (Continued)

The Group has also sponsored a defined contribution scheme
which is managed by an approved trustee registered under
Mandatory Provident Fund Schemes Ordinance (the “MPF
Ordinance”) for its employees in Hong Kong. Both the Group
and its employees in Hong Kong are required to contribute
a maximum of 5% of each individual’s relevant income or a
limited amount as prescribed by the MPF Ordinance. The
assets of the scheme are held separately from those of the
Group and independently administered.

Contributions made to the above respective defined
contribution pension plans are expenses as incurred. Prepaid
contributions are recognised as asset to the extent that a
cash refund or a reduction in future payment is available.

Bonus entitlements

The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a
liability when the Group has a present legal or constructive
obligation as a result of services rendered by employees and
a reliable estimate of the obligation can be made. Liabilities of
bonus plan are expected to be settled within twelve months
and are measured at the amounts expected to be paid when
they are settled.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.19 Employee benefit (Continued)

2.20

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

(c)

Share-based compensation

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based
compensation plan. The fair value of the employee services
received in exchange for the grant of the options is
recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
over the vesting period is determined by reference to the
fair value of the options granted, excluding the impact of
any non-market vesting conditions (for example, profitability
and sales growth targets) and including that of non-vesting
conditions (for example, the requirement for employees
to save). Non-market vesting conditions are included in
assumptions about the number of options that are expected
to vest. At the reporting date, the entity revises its estimates
of the number of options that are expected to vest. It
recognises the impact of the revision of original estimates,
if any, in profit or loss, with a corresponding adjustment to
equity.

The proceeds received net of any directly attributable
transaction costs are credited to share capital (nominal value)
and share premium when the options are exercised.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that
an outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation;
and the amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not
recognised for future operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering the
class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the
same class of obligations may be small.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.20

2.21

2,22

Provisions (Continued)

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures
expected to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money
and the risks specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision
due to passage of time is recognised as interest expense.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from sale of upstream products and fermented and
downstream products is recognised when goods are delivered
to the customers, which is taken to be the point in time when
the Group transfers control over the products to the customers.
Revenue excludes value added taxes or other sales taxes and is after
deduction of sales return, if any. The Group does not expect to have
any contract where the period between the transfer of goods to the
customer and the payment by the customer exceeds one year. As a
result, the Group does not adjust any of the transaction prices for the
time value of money.

The Group does not expect to have any contract asset which
represents the Group’s rights to consideration in exchange of goods
that delivered to the customer is not yet unconditional. In contrast, a
receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the
point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before payment is due.

Advances from customers are contract liabilities which represent the
Group’s obligation to render goods to customer for which the Group
has received consideration from the customers.

The Group also does not expect to have any incremental cost
to obtain a contract with a customer. Costs that will be incurred
regardless of whether the contract is obtained are expensed as they
incurred.

Dividend income
Dividend income from unlisted investments is recognised when the
shareholder’s right to receive payment is established.

Dividend income from listed investments is recognised when the
share price of the investment goes ex-dividend.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.23

2.24

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective interest method.
When a loan and receivable is impaired, the Group reduces the
carrying amount to its recoverable amount, being the estimated
future cash flow discounted at the original effective interest rate of the
instrument, and continues unwinding the discount as interest income.
Interest income on impaired loan and receivables are recognised
using the original effective interest rate.

Leases

A lessee is required to recognise almost all leases on the statement of
financial position which will reflect their “right-of-use” for a period of
time and their associated liability for payments.

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on
a present value basis. Lease liabilities are measured at the present
value of the following lease payments:

° fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less
any lease incentives receivables

° variable lease payments that are based on an index or a rate

o amounts expected to be payable under residual value
guarantees

o the exercise price of purchase option if it is reasonably certain

to exercise that option, and
o payments of penalties for terminating the lease reflecting the

lessee exercising an option to terminate the lease.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit
in the lease, if that rate can be readily determined, or the Group’s
incremental borrowing rate.
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Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.24

2.25

Leases (Continued)
Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

o the amount of initial measurement of lease liabilities

o any lease payment made at or before the commencement
date less any lease incentives received

o any initial direct costs, and
o restoration costs.

Each lease payment is allocated between the liability and finance
cost. The finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease
period so as to produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the
remaining balance of the liability for each period. The right-of-use
asset is depreciated over the shorter of the asset’s useful life and the
lease term on a straight-line basis.

There are recognition exemptions for short-term leases and leases of
low-value items. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12
months or less at the commencement date. Low-value items included
[T-equipment and small items of office furniture. Payments associated
with short-term leases and leases of low value items are recognised
on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or loss.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where
there is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and
the Group will comply with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in
profit or loss over the period necessary to match them with the costs
that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are
included in non-current liabilities as deferred income and are credited
to profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the expected lives of the
related assets.

ANNUAL REPORT 2020

2

FEGHBRBE (&

2.24

2.25

HE &)
EREEENMRAFERENUT
RIF .

. HEAENYSHES
LE]

. INEE =R A IR (=
WEFREENT BHEE
WEBEFEEES

d ERTEERERA ; K&
. EEmM -

KREAEMTREEREERAR
BB REMANEERBE
Bamhiik UFEHSHEE
BRERERNEEEHA K&
BREEENAEEYBFHREELN
FHPRIEEPREGEITE-

MEHEEREEEEEHEER
BHERH R - EHAEEENRHES
HEAEAFIR12E A 5112
BEMNEE-HEEEEERFESE
S 28 A7 B /N BUHE AR Ak o B2
RHAERMEEREEERRR
BRI ERER R P EDE A
Fsz e

BT #Bh
RN A S ERER FUWE
B R A B R & PR A IS %
B I E QT (EHESD

52 57 B 00 BT 68 B 8 3
JE » A 1E 4% 20 Bh B S B B o
i8> A ER S B O AR - 1048
Ll

BV~ B KRR 1 R R O BUR
BEE ARSI A EERIEIER
A WRAEMEENAS FHR
RERIEST AR

k- kY- -5 S



Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements

aHPHERRMEE

2

76

Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.26 Research and development expenditure
Research expenditure is recognised as an expense as incurred. Costs
incurred on development projects (relating to the design and testing
of new or improved products) are recognised as intangible assets
when all of the following criteria are fulfilled:

it is technically feasible to complete the intangible asset so
that it will be available for use or sale;

management intends to complete the intangible asset and
use or sell it;

there is an ability to use or sell the intangible asset;

it can be demonstrated how the intangible asset will generate
probable future economic benefits;

adequate technical, financial and other resources to complete
the development and to use or sell the intangible asset are
available; and

the expenditure attributable to the intangible asset during its
development can be reliably measured.

Other development expenditures that do not meet these criteria are
recognised as an expense as incurred. Development costs previously
recognised as an expense are not recognised as an asset in a
subsequent period. Capitalised development costs are recorded as
intangible assets and amortised from the point at which the asset is
ready for use on a straight-line basis over its useful life, not exceeding
five years.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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2 Summary of significant accounting policies (Continued)

2.27 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised
as a liability in the Group’s and the Company’s financial statements
in the period in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s
shareholders or directors, where appropriate.

3 Financial risk management

3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks:
market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group’s overall risk
management programme focuses on the unpredictability of financial
markets and seeks to minimise potential adverse effects on the
Group’s financial performance.

(a) Market risk
() Foreign exchange risk
The Group undertakes certain transactions
denominated in foreign currencies, hence, exposures
to exchange rate fluctuations arise. Approximately
9% (2019: 10%) of the Group’s sales are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currency of the entities of the Group.

The operating subsidiaries of the Group mainly
operate in the PRC with most of the transactions
settled in RMB. In addition, most of the Group’s
liabilities are denominated in RMB. Therefore, the
management considers the Group is not exposed to
significant foreign exchange risk.

The Group manages its foreign currency risk by
closely monitoring the movement of the foreign
currency rate.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Financial risk factors (Continued)
Market risk (Continued)

(a

(i)

(i)

Corn kernel price risk

Corn kernels are the major raw materials of the
Group and they are subject to price changes in
the commodity market. During the year, the Group
did not use any commodity futures to control the
exposure of the Group to price fluctuations of corn
kernel. The Group will consider the production
schedule and make bulk purchases from spot market
when the market price of corn kernel is considered as
low.

Cornstarch price risk

Cornstarch is one of the major products of the Group
and it is subject to price changes in the commodity
market. The party which holding a put position of
cornstarch futures contract would not make any profit
if the cornstarch market is prosperity. In other words,
short-selling cornstarch futures contract during the
price-up period would unnecessary increase the
exposure of price risk. The management would use
futures contract to control the exposure of price risk
when the market is extreme volatile or in recession.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(a)

(b)

Market risk (Continued)

(iv) Interest rate risk
The Group’s interest rate risk arises primarily from
ad hoc short-term borrowings or discount on bank
acceptance bills carried at variable rates, which
exposes the Group to cash flow interest rate risk.
The Group’s fixed rate bank borrowings expose
the Group to fair value interest rate risk. The
management considers the fair value interest rate risk
is insignificant as the fixed rate bank borrowings are
repayable within one year.

Credit risk

The Group’s credit risk is primarily attributable to trade
and other receivables and bank deposits included in the
consolidated statement of financial position which represent
the Group’s maximum exposure to credit risk in relation to
its financial assets. Management has a credit policy in place
and the exposures to these credit risks are monitored on an
ongoing basis.

To manage the risk arising from bank deposits, which
included pledged bank deposits and fixed deposits, the
Group only transacts with reputable banks which are high-
credit-quality financial institutions. There has no recent
history of default in relation to these financial institutions.
The credit risk on bank acceptance bills is monitored closely
by the management who will assess the reputation of the
customer’s issuing bank and the risk of recoverability. The
ECL on all bank deposits and bank acceptance bills is close
to zero.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.1

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Financial risk factors (Continued)

(b)

Credit risk (Continued)

For other receivables, management makes periodic
collective assessments as well as individual assessment on
the recoverability of other receivables based on historical
settlement records and past experience. The management
believes that there is no material credit risk inherent in the
Group’s outstanding balances of other receivables and the
ECL is close to zero.

For trade receivables, the Group has credit policy to monitor
the credit risk. In general, the credit record and credit period
for each customer are regularly assessed, based on the
customer’s financial condition, historical payment record and
other factors such as current market condition.

The Group categories trade or other receivables for write
off when a customer or debtor fails to make contractual
payments. Where trade or other receivables have been
written off, the Group continues to engage in enforcement
activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where
recoveries are made, these are recognised in profit or loss.

The Group applies the simplified approach to providing for
ECLs, which permits the use of the lifetime ECL provision for
all trade receivables from third parties and related parties.
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3 Financial risk management (Continued)

3 MBRAMER (&
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 31 HMBEKERZR @)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b)) GERE #E)
The following tables provide information about the Group’s TREHEERAEER
exposure to credit risk and ECLs for trade receivables as at ZE2IZEFERIZ—A
31 December 2020 and 2019: F+ZB=+—Hm#E
SEBETREENEER
G TERREBBIBER
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHARSIEEE R IRE4AME EiERHE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT ARBTT
2020 TTIEF
Current (not past due) IECNE S p:) ~ 0% 196,187 -
1 - 60 days past due mH—=x+H 0.50% - -
61 — 90 days past due BN+ —Z2N+H 1.50% - -
More than 365 days past due BHBB="/TEH 100.00% 13,845 13,845
210,032 18,845
Gross
Expected carrying Loss
loss rate amount allowance
FEHAESEEE SR IRE4ME BRRE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARETT
2019 “Z2—hF
Current (not past due) BDHR (R#E1HR) ~ 0% 142,058 -
1 - 60 days past due wH—Z=x+H 0.50% 1 -
61 - 90 days past due A+ —Z2N+H 1.50% - -
More than 365 days past due AHBB ="/ 1TEH 100.00% 13,845 13,845
155,904 18,845

Expected loss rates are based on actual loss experience

over the past two years. These rates are adjusted to reflect

differences between economic conditions during the period

over which the historic data has been collected, current

conditions and the Group’s view of economic conditions over

the expected lives of the receivables.
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Financial risk management (Continued) 3 HEAREIR @)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Continued) 3.1 HBEKBERR @)
(b)  Credit risk (Continued) (b) EERE ()
The Group has no significant concentration of credit risk in S8 5 K HAth & W R
respect of the trade and other receivables, with exposures S AEETESEES
spread over a number of debtors and customers. NiEERRE BEED 8
REBEBARER
(c) Liquidity risk (c) TEELRE
The Group monitors and maintains a level of cash and cash REBEFEEEE B
equivalents deemed adequate by the management to finance EREEEBYREE
the Group’s operations and mitigate the effects of fluctuations ERERR/TEMNKTE
in cash flows. In addition, the Group also maintains sufficient UAREENKLESHBE
banking facilities to meet its future payment requirements. REBREEREEHN
o IS REE I
RRANRITEERM
HARRATRFTTE ©
The table below analyses the Group’s financial liabilities into TRAXEETHEE
relevant maturity groupings based on the remaining period ZHEMBREAIBESEN
at the reporting dates to the contractual maturity dates. D DB ERRSEH
The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual BEANIBEENREEG
undiscounted cash flows: M TRIFENEEES
ABHRBRRER
Carrying
Within Between Between amount
1 year 1-2years 2-5years Total liabilities
—ENR —FERE REERE st IREEAE
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT ARBTR AREFR ARBTR ARBFR
2020 -t 33
Trade and other payables B 7 REMERT 534,586 - - 534,586 534,586
Borrowings e 127,615 - - 127,615 126,849
Employee housing deposits &L EEREE 23,741 - - 23,741 23,741
Lease liabilities HEEE 614 502 - 1,116 1,100
Futures contracts HEEH K23 - - KIS 341
686,897 502 - 687,399 686,617
2019 “2-hE
Trade and other payables B 7 REMERT 675,355 - - 675,355 675,355
Borrowings (R 153,526 - - 153,526 151,354
Employee housing deposits & T EEREE 23,741 - - 23,741 23,741
Lease liabilities HESR 653 713 534 1,900 1,835
863,275 713 534 854,522 862,285

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.2

3.3

Capital management

The Group’s objective when managing capital is to safeguard the
Group’s ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide
return for shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders. In
order to maintain or adjust the capital structure, the Group may
adjust the amount of dividend paid to shareholders, return capital
to shareholders, issue new shares or sell assets to reduce the cost
of capital. The Group monitors its capital structure on the basis of
gearing ratio. The gearing ratio is determined by total borrowings
to total assets of the Group. During 2020, the Group’s capital
management strategy, which was unchanged from prior year, was
to maintain a lower level of gearing ratio in order to cope with
unexpected change in economic conditions.

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries are subject to
externally imposed capital requirement.

3

HEEREIR &

3.2 EBXrEE
AEESBEANBIEAREAE
EETFAKENAES  UARB

%ﬁﬁ@ﬁi%ﬁ%% /A
AREMNE - BT M HBEE
rRE AEEAEREORR
XUNREEHR - PARRROA
BRI HERE S FEL
HEEE A - A EBRIERAR
KEREARGHE - RFERIZ
FEEBERABEFUEERE
EE-R_Z2_Z2F AEEZ
BEAEERBREFBRIEHER
EE 3> DUME S A I 0 Y 28 25 4
B ARRBREAFAER -

KABHEERWE ARG HA
BTERIIEEREREZR

2020 2019

ZEZE “Z—hEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

ARBTT AEB®ETIT

Total borrowings &N 4E 126,849 151,354

Total assets E \Emﬁ 4,567,492 4,424,974

Gearing ratio BARLEE 2.8% 3.4%
Financial value estimation 3.3 WMBEEEM

Fair value measurements are categorised into three different levels
based on the degree to which the inputs used to arrive at the fair
value of the assets and liabilities are observable and the significance
of the inputs to the fair value measurement in its entirety, as follows:

- Level 1 inputs are quoted prices (unadjusted) in active
the Stock Exchange or other
recognised commodity market) for identical assets or

markets (for example:

liabilities at the measurement date. The prices of futures
quoted in a recognised commodity market are example of
Level 1 inputs.

- Level 2 inputs are those, other than quoted prices included in
Level 1 that are observable either directly or indirectly.
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Financial risk management (Continued)

3.3

Financial value estimation (Continued)

- Level 3 inputs are unobservable inputs. The Group generally
classifies assets or liabilities as Level 3 when their fair value
is determined using unobservable inputs of the assets or
liabilities. This would include latest financial statements. The
investment in unlisted equity, after considering its business
model, fall into this category and its fair value is measured on
a recurring basis.

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial
statements at fair value on a recurring basis, the Group determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by
re-assessing categorisation (based on the lowest level of input that is
significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of the
reporting period.

There is no transfers between Level 1, 2 and 3 during the year.

Critical accounting estimates and judgements

Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on
historical experience and other factors, including expectations of future
events that are believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The
resulting accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related
actual results. The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities
within the next financial year are discussed below.

(a)

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Valuation on inventories

The Group carries out an inventory review on a product-by-product
basis at the end of the reporting period and makes allowance for
obsolete and slow-moving items. The management estimates the
net realisable value for such finished goods, work-in-progress and
raw materials primarily on the estimated future selling price and
market conditions. Where the estimates of the net realisable value
are less than expected, a material allowance may arise. The Group
reassesses these estimates regularly.
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Critical accounting estimates and judgements (Continued)

(b)

(c)

Useful lives and estimated impairment of property,
plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment.
This estimate is based on the historical experience of the actual
useful lives of property, plant and equipment of similar nature and
functions. It could change significantly as a result of technical
innovations and competitor actions in response to severe industry
cycles. Management will adjust the depreciation charge where useful
lives are different to that of previously estimated, or it will write-off
or write-down technically obsolete or non-strategic assets that have
been abandoned or sold.

The Group assesses whether there are any indicators of impairment
for property, plant and equipment at the end of each reporting period.
If such an indication exists, the recoverable amount of property,
plant and equipment is estimated using the higher of its fair value
less costs of disposals and its value-in-use. If the carrying amount of
property, plant and equipment exceeds its recoverable amount, an
impairment loss is recognised to reduce the asset to its recoverable
amount. Such impairment losses are recognised in profit or loss.

Impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group estimates the loss allowances for trade receivables
by assessing the ECLs. This requires the use of estimates and
judgements. ECLs are based on the Group’s historical credit loss
experience, adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors, and
an assessment of both the current and forecast general economic
conditions at the end of reporting period. Where the estimation is
different from the original estimate, such difference will affect the
carrying amounts of trade receivables and thus the impairment loss
in the period in which such estimate is changed. The Group keeps
assessing the expected credit loss of trade receivables during their
expected lives.
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Revenue and segment information
The Group’s operating segments are as follows:

Upstream products — the manufacture and sale of cornstarch
and ancillary corn-refined products

Fermented and — the manufacture and sale of lysine,
downstream products starch-based sweetener, modified starch
and other products

The operating segments are identified in accordance with the economic
similarity and distinction of our products. For the purpose of assessing
segment performance and allocating resources between segments, the chief
operating decision-maker assesses and monitors the segment revenues,
margins and results attributable to each reportable segment. Inter-segment
sales or provision of materials to other segments is not measured.

Interest income and expense are not included in the result for each operating
segment as these are managed on a group basis and are not allocated to
reportable segments.

Unallocated income and expenses mainly consist of certain government
grants and corporate costs respectively which cannot be allocated to
individual segments.

Sales between segments are charged at cost or with reference to the selling
prices used for sales made to third parties at the then prevailing market
prices. The revenue from external parties reported to the management is
measured in a manner consistent with that in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income.
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Revenue and segment information (Continued)

5 WAKRDERER (&

Fermented
and
Upstream downstream
products products Unallocated Total
BBR
LBER THREM Ko B =
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR ARETFR ARBFT ARBTR
2020 —E-HE
Sales to external customers BN RE R IHE 6,738,510 2,153,751 - 8,892,261
Inter-segment sales 7 EB I 236,911 - - 236,911
Reportable segment results AREDIEE 436,538 109,446 - 545,984
Unallocated income FABUA 45,485
Unallocated expenses E vl b (329,969)
Finance income BEWA 15,084
Finance expenses MEER (5,346)
Profit before income tax FRPTISIRAIF] 271,238
Other segment information: Hithnar&ER -
Depreciation e 89,857 94,282 66,875 251,014
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Revenue and segment information (Continued)

5 WARDERER (&

Fermented
and
Upstream  downstream
products products Unallocated Total
BEKR
ERES T E G i &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBFR AREBFR ARBTFR ARETT
2019 —EhE
Sales to external customers AN RE R IHE 5,317,150 1,433,251 - 6,750,401
Inter-segment sales DEPREHE 216,700 - - 216,700
Reportable segment results AR ED XS 280,915 51,734 - 332,649
Unallocated income FOFUWA 46,954
Unallocated expenses RO (274,211)
Finance income B U A 19,540
Finance expenses MEE A (1,661)
Profit before income tax FRET1S IR AT 128,271
Other segment information: HithoE&ER -
Depreciation e 85,211 54,976 38,854 179,041

During the years ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, all source of revenue
are recognised at a point in time.

Based on the place of the operation of external customers, revenue attributed
to the PRC and other countries is RMB8,119,899,000 and RMB772,362,000

(2019: RMB6,077,523,000 and RMB672,878,000) respectively.

The Group’s assets, liabilities and capital expenditures are predominately
attributable to a single geographical region, which is the PRC. Therefore, no

analysis by geographical regions is presented.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

RENBRMIERAIRAR

RBEEZZ-ZFR-_ZT-NE+A

=+—BLFE FRAWRARRR —EE

I REFE ST

RESREREEMEH > FEK
EMBEREEHNBRADN DS AREKE

8,119,899,0007t & A R #772,362,0007T
(ZE—NF : AR¥6,077,523,0007T K

AR£672,878,0007T) ©

25 DA o

FEENEE - BRAKREEHRERED
RE—EE—HE BIARE- FI - s
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Other net income 6 HthBWA
2020 2019
—EEF —F-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREBTT
Amortisation of government grants (note 28) BT Bh Ay 8 (MF5228) 58,821 56,981
Gain on sale of scrap materials SHERER 2 W am 11,521 10,401
Electricity and related services B R AERARTS 4,348 147
Accounts payable written back A CIEENE 3,996 -
Gain on futures contracts HE AN WE 2,524 328
Government grants (note) BFEeh (M sE) 1,543 2,824
(Loss)/gain on disposals of property, HEME -BERKE
plant and equipment m (E538) Was (1,231) 12,570
Net foreign exchange loss EREIEFEB (4,036) (1,534)
Others Hith 3,385 3,008
80,871 84,725
Note: B st -
For the year ended 31 December 2020, the government grants mainly represented HEZ-ZF+ZA=+—HIEFE K
a subsidy of approximately RMB1,176,000 from local government for supporting FI#EBh = 24541 75 BT 72 2 st E MR (Y
employment. For the year ended 31 December 2019, the government grants mainly EBHYARK1,176,000c B E_Z—HF
represented a subsidy of approximately RMB2,136,000 from local government for +ZRA=1+—HILEE BF#HBIEEIEH
supporting business development. FENAZREBEREMEBEENENOAR
#%2,136,0007T ©
The government grants were granted at the discretion of the government and were not BN mE I EBRRERL I EIFEE S
recurring in nature. =
7 Finance income 7 REWA
2020 2019
—EIER —E—NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF ARETIT
Interest income on IVENEISEFIISON
— Bank deposits —IRITER 13,399 17,646
— Undue bank acceptance bills —REHRRIT R R ERE 1,685 1,894
15,084 19,540

ANNUAL REPORT 2020 —Z—2&&% §9
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Research and development expenses include staff costs and depreciation, which
are included in the above respective expenses, in the Research and Development

Department of the Group.

9() CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

RENBRMIERAIRAR

8 Finance expenses 8 MEER
2020 2019
—EEHF “Z—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARBFT
Interest on TFEENHE
- Bank borrowings —IRITIER 3,807 405
— Discounted bills receivables —FEURBRIR Z= 4 1,500 1,238
— Lease liabilities (note 26) —fEaE (fs26) 39 18
5,346 1,661
9 Profit before income tax 9 PRERF S AIF)E
The major expenses of the Group are as follows: AEENETERZWT
2020 2019
—E-EF —E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREF ARBTT
Salaries, wages and other benefits e - ITEREMER 180,065 189,099
Pension scheme contributions BIRESEHEIHR 10,392 18,725
Depreciation of property, ME-BERZEITE (5E16)
plant and equipment (note 16) 241,313 171,446
Depreciation of right-of-use assets (note 17) BREEETE (EE17) 9,701 7,595
Research and development expenses (note) R EER (15D 28,899 32,635
Auditor’s remuneration 1% 24 6 3 B
- Audit service —BE IR 766 788
- Non-audit service —IEEB RS 271 274
Note: FEE -

MR KkMZEEROEAERAEBZETH
KRRITE (Bt A LREERZA) ©
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10

Benefits and interests of directors 10 EFHNEMKRER
Details of directors’ emoluments of the Company are set out below: RABIEENFHIFBEHRINWT :
Pension
scheme
Fees Salaries contributions Total
ik e RAEHIMR &t
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETR AR®ETFR ARBEFT ARBFT
2020 2%
Executive directors: HTEE:
Mr. Tian Qixiang HE#EE - 480 - 480
Mr. Gao Shijun BtELE - 450 67 517
Mr. Liu Xianggang AREEE - 410 67 477
Mr. Yu Yingquan FREEE - 410 - 410
Independent non-executive directors: BIFRTES !
Professor Hua Qiang TERHIR 50 - - 50
Mr. Sun Mingdao RAERYE 50 - - 50
Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken REERE 08 - - 98
Total aat 198 1,750 134 2,082
2019 “2-NF
Executive directors: HTES !
Mr. Tian Qixiang HE#LE - 480 - 480
Mr. Gao Shijun BUERE - 450 75 525
Mr. Liu Xianggang AKEEE - 410 75 485
Mr. Yu Yingquan FHREE - 410 - 410
Independent non-executive directors: BiERTES .
Professor Hua Qiang TERHE 50 - - 50
Mr. Sun Mingdao BBEELE 50 - - 50
Mr. Yue Kwai Wa, Ken REFELE 97 - - 97
Total At 197 1,750 150 2,097
For the year ended 31 December 2020 and 2019, the retirement benefits HE_Z-ZEFRZZ—NAEFE+ZA
paid to Mr. Gao Shijun and Mr. Liu Xianggang are related to their services as a —t+—HLEFE aettELERIIRA
director of the Company and its subsidiaries. FEZMIERENDEESFREAR
BIREWB AT ESIER
ANNUAL REPORT 2020 —Z—Z&&% (]
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11 Individuals with highest emoluments 11 REFAL

Of the five individuals with the highest emoluments in the Group, three (2019: rEBRGEESHFALHR =2 (22
three) were directors of the Company whose emoluments are reflected in —NE =Z8)ATREANES BEHNH
the analysis in note 10. The emoluments of the remaining two (2019: two) ERWEI0NDINE2T R TFmE (ZF

individual was as follows: —NE  WB) mEiATHNENT

2020 2019

ZEITHE “B-NF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%FT AREFT

Salaries e 1,388 1,373

Pension scheme contributions BREETEIHRR 32 32

1,420 1,405
The emoluments paid to the above individuals fell within the following bands: BRUTRIRNZ Bt A2 2%

Number of individuals

ALTHE

2020 2019

ket 32 —Z—hE

Nil — HK$1,000,000 2 1,000,00078 70 1 1

HK$1,000,000 - HK$1,500,000 1,000,0007 7£ 21,500,000 75 1 1

12  Income tax expense 12 Friefiz

2020 2019

—ECTHE “E-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT ARBFT

Current income tax BERPRISR

— PRC Enterprises Income Tax (‘EIT”) —RE SR (TREMER) 32,451 16,397

— Over-provision in prior years — B FEEBERE (3,998) (3,904)

— Other PRC withholding tax —HhhEFEINR 334 -

Deferred tax (note 25) IRIEFRTE (F15E25) 35,412 12,682

64,199 25,175
The Group’s major business is in the PRC. Under the law of the PRC on AEBZFEEBRPRET - RIEF
EIT and its Implementation Regulation, the tax rate of the PRC subsidiaries EARMEEMBSREZ AR R B
is 25% for both years, except for one subsidiary of the Group which is B hENBASNMEEE ZREHS
recognised as high technology enterprise is entitled to enjoy a preferential EIT 25%  MEAREE—HERRASEM bR
rate of 15% (2019:15%). M B ABRIN ZRABRZHE15% (=

T—NEF 1 156%) VBB REMEREK-

Q2  CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED HERIIZERERAS
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12 Income tax expense (Continued)

12

No provision for Hong Kong Profits Tax has been made as the Group entities’
profit neither arose in nor was derived from Hong Kong during both years.

Pursuant to the PRC EIT and its Implementation Regulation, non-PRC
resident enterprises are levied withholding tax at 10% (unless reduced by
tax treaties/arrangements) on dividends receivable from PRC enterprises
for profits earned since 1 January 2008. The Group adopted the 10%
withholding tax rate for PRC withholding tax purposes during the year ended

31 December 2020 and 2019.

The income tax expense for the year can be reconciled to the profit before

income tax as follows:

FRGIZH (@)

HRAEENEENMEFEANLEE
EEELNERNAE KA EARSENE
TRIEL R -

RIBPEIEEFEREREETAR >
FHEERECERKFREEU—ES
NEFE—FB—HEMMERABEELNRS
Z10% IR HUTRINGR CRIFRILIHE
S ZYETHRENRE) REBEE"T T
EERZE-NAF+ZRA=+—HLE
B> AEEERPEANRRAI10% T
nmmE-.

AF E PSR S ] RS 8 Al F)F
HERWT :

2020 2019
BT —Z—nF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®TT AREBTT
Profit before income tax FRETSM AT HE 271,238 123,271
Notional tax on profit before income tax IRPTSMRAI A ELUB M EFAE
at applicable rates ZBERIE 65,588 31,056
Tax effects of THREBNRBEE
— Expenses not deductible for tax purposes — A EREEX 3,768 3,808
— Income not subject to tax — AR UA (530) (685)
— Over-provision in prior years — BT EBREEE (3,998) (3,904)
— Tax deduction in the PRC —HhERIER R (3,963) (5,100)
- PRC dividend withholding tax —FERR BTEINR 3,000 -
— Other PRC withholding tax —HETEINR 334 -
64,199 25,175
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14

94

Earnings per share 13

The calculation of the basic earnings per share attributable to the owners of
the Company is based on the following data:

Profit attributable to owners of the Company KABHEE NEMLFH
(RMB’000) (NR#Fm)
Weighted average number of ordinary shares BEITEBRMET S (TR

in issue (thousands)

BRkE

KRB EANEEBREREFTHIZU
TEEEE

The basic and diluted earnings per share for the year ended 31 December
2020 and 2019 were the same because there was no dilutive potential
ordinary share.

Dividends 14

Dividend payable to shareholders attributable to the previous financial year,
approved and paid during the year:

2019 final dividend of HK0.62 cents per share ZE-NFFRARESR0.62E

(2018: HK1.20 cents) (ZZ—)\F : 1.2051)

2020 2019
ot gt 75 —E—hE
190,120 96,847
5,995,591 5,995,892
MRHE-E-BER-B—AFFZ
B=+—BLEE SRS RmNE
EEENR WS REA R SRR -
2

BEMBEERG RAFEERRIET X
THRECRERS

2020 2019
ZEIEE “E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBFT ARBET T
33,850 63,292

Subsequent to 31 December 2020, the directors proposed a final dividend of
HKO0.90 cents (2019: HK0.62 cents) per share, amounting to HK$53,947,000
(2019: HK$37,175,000). The final dividend proposed after the end of the
reporting period is subject to approval by shareholders in forthcoming general
meeting and has not been recognised as a liability as at 31 December 2020.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED PR ZEREREAE

NW_EZEF+-A=+—HE EFE
FHIRERRESR.9BW (ZE—H
&1 0.62781l) » & EEES3,947,0004 7T
(ZT— 1% 1 37,175,000 7T) - R &
TEE+ AT+ —H RMEKRBE
FRENREREBERRNERRE
ARG LHER FEEE BUKRERS
=L
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15

Subsidiaries

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, the Company has the following interests
in its subsidiaries. The kind of legal entity of these subsidiaries is limited
liability company. The class of shares held is ordinary unless otherwise stated:

Name of company

G

Shandong Shouguang Juneng Golden
Corn Development Co., Ltd*
(“Golden Corn”)

LRBAEEEEABERRAT

(r&Ex))

Shouguang Golden Far East Modified
Starch Company Limited*
BREERBZURNERAT

Linging Deneng Golden Corn Bio Limited*
EEBEEERENERAT

Shouguang Golden Corn Biotechnology
Limited* (“Golden Corn Biotech”)
BAETREMRRBRAT
(e ETREMBE)

Shouguang Juneng Musashino
Biotechnology Co., Ltd*
("Juneng Musashino”)

SRERREBEMHRERAT
(EEHES)

Sourcestar Worldwide Inc.

China Starch Group Limited
FERNEBBRAD

Place of
incorporation
and business

MRS

PRC
$

PRC
$

PRC
$

PRC
$

PRC
$

BVI, Hong Kong
HBEEREE B

Hong Kong
EE

* English transliteration is for identification only.

Note:

Juneng Musashino was incorporated in August 2020. In light of the development of
COVID-19, both shareholders of Juneng Musashino unanimously agreed to postpone
share capital contribution schedule. As at 31 December 2020, Golden Corn provided
approximately RMB5,000,000 to Juneng Musashino as its working capital.

15 EBAE

RZEZEERZZE—NAE+ZA
=+—H ARBBETIRENBEASF
MG ZEWBABINELERENS

BRRE REAEIBEN FFHEZRED

fERREBER
Particulars of
issued and Interest held
Principal activities paid up share capital by the Group
TEEE ERTRBEREHE FEEFEERR
Manufacturing and sale of comstarch, RMB700,000,000 100%
lysine and related products A E#700,000,0007%
LERBEIRERN BERREBER
Research, development, manufacture, and sales of US$13,850,000 100%
modified starch, cornstarch, glucose, maltose, 13,850,000 75
dextrin, animal feed additives, food-grade enzymes,
biobased materials, and related products
B S ERBELERN EKBH BER BT
W BWERANE B LA EWEEMEK
HEER
Manufacturing and sale of cornstarch, starch-based RMB200,000,000 91%
sweetener and related products AR 200,000,00075
LERBETRRN BNEREBER
Research, development, manufacture and sales of RMB200,000,000 55%
starch, food additives, feeds, amion acids and AR #200,000,0007%
related products
PRE L ERBHBERN  RUANE B8 SRR LA
Em
Research, development, production and sale of (note) 75%
lactate and other related products. (Fiz%)
¥ EERHENREREMERER
Investment holding US$240 100%
REZR 240%7T
Investment holding HK$1 100%
REZR BT
* B ELEEER
BsE :
ERERBER_Z_=FN\BEMMKiI-%

FECOVID-191y 8 /& » BEsE R BFBIR R —5
FEEEERMIENS - NI _BF+
A=+—H 2ERAEEREFRHEOA

R #55,000,000T i HEEEE
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Subsidiaries (Continued)

15

The following table lists out the information relating to Golden Corn Biotech,
the only subsidiary of the Group which has material non—controlling interest
(“NCI”). The summarised financial information presented below represents the
amounts before any inter-company elimination.

NCI percentage

Current assets
Non-current assets
Current liabilities
Non-current liabilities
Net assets

Carrying amount of NCI

Revenue

Profit/(loss) for the year

Total comprehensive income/(expenses)
Profit/(loss) allocated to NCI

Dividend paid to NCI
Cash flows from operating activities

Cash flows from investing activities
Cash flows from financing activities

FREERRREmA DL

MBEE

FRBEE

mEaE

IFRFERE

BEFE
FREER R R mREE

WA

EEEFHE (E18)

fra s (FIs) 4888

DEEIFERR R
FHE (B18)

I FIFERRREDRBIRE

RELZDRHNIRERE
REREZHNIRTRE
REMEBHNRTRE

MEBAE (&

TRV EEMEAEEE—ERERFE
Iepes i (RERRRED ) B A
Bl FOREMRRINER - LIT 25898
BERMEERS AEAREREHEA
LNkl

2020 2019
—EB-BF —E—-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT ARBFIT
45% 45%
645,767 401,803
1,324,130 1,340,883
(1,725,682) (1,534,525)
(22,960) (12,210)
221,255 195,951
99,565 88,178
2,879,429 1,310,096
25,304 (5,633)
25,304 (5,633)
11,387 (2,535)
253,215 580,261
(193,134) (605,929)
(30,000) 30,000

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED
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16  Property, plant and equipment 16 YE -BERRZE
Plant and
equipment
Plant and Motor Other under
Buildings machinery vehicles machinery  construction Total
BF RBERESR "E Hitige TRBERRE st

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTE ARBTT ARETT ARBTR ARBTR AREBT:T

Year ended 31 December 2019 BE-E-hE+ZBA=+—H

HEE
Net book value at 1 January 2019 RZIE-NE—HF—H

HIREFE 403,753 542,108 4,985 43,697 786,727 1,781,270
Additions HE 498 18,859 2,228 2,404 485,980 509,969
Transfers upon completion TR EE 178,339 385,049 4,579 1,540 (569,507) -
Disposals/written-off Y% ¢ (21,315) (12,381) (25) 80) - (33,801)
Depreciation charge for the year FENEER (29,646) (130,792) (2,876) (8,132) - (171,446)
Net book value at 31 December 2019 RZZ2-A&E+ZBA=+—H

HIREFE 531,629 802,843 8,891 39,429 703,200 2,085,992

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 W-ZE—hE+-B=+—H

k=ZZ-%&5—-F—H
Cost A 683,308 1,580,831 25,532 103,500 703,200 3,096,371
Accumulated depreciation and impairment  BEHTERFEE (151,679) (777,988) (16,641) (64,071) - (1,010,379
Net book value REFME 531,629 802,843 8,891 39,429 703,200 2,085,992
Year ended 31 December 2020 BE_Z-TF+-A=+—-H

LLEE
Net book value at 1 January 2020 RIZZE5—F—H

BIREFE 531,629 802,843 8,891 39,429 703,200 2,085,992
Additions wE - 5,533 3,843 2,720 153,752 165,848
Transfers upon completion TR 204,455 491,000 - 3,769 (699,224) -
Disposals/written-off HE /8 ©) (2,761) - (102) - (2,866)
Depreciation charge for the year EEWEER (36,754) (191,498) (4,035) (9,026) - (241,313)
Net book value at 31 December 2020 RIBZRE+-A=+—-H

HEEEE 699,327 1,105,117 8,699 36,790 157,728 2,007,661
At 31 December 2020 RZEZEE+ZA=+—-H
Cost A 887,684 2,059,834 27,085 108,735 157,728 3,241,066
Accumulated depreciation and impairment 25t E KA (188,357) (954,717) (18,386) (71,945) - (1,233,405)
Net book value REFE 699,327 1,105,117 8,699 36,790 157,728 2,007,661
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Right-of-use assets 17 (FRAEEE
The amount in respect of leases are as follows: ESZEWNT .
Land
Right of use assets use right Properties Total
FERHEEE Tt fE A LY “aEt
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
AREBTT AR®BTT AR®TT
Net book value at 1 January 2019 RZZ2E—h&F—8—H
HEREFE 200,681 451 201,132
Acquisition/recognition for the year REEURRE, TR 204,977 2,029 207,006
Depreciation charge for the year FEITEER (6,975) (620) (7,595)
Net book value at 31 December 2019 A ZE-NEFE+ZB=+—H
and 1 January 2020 RZEZZF—H—H
HEREFE 398,683 1,860 400,543
Acquisition for the year REE RS 38,988 - 38,988
Depreciation charge for the year FEINEER (9,024) 677) (9,701)
Net book value at 31 December 2020 AR CIEF+ZB=+—H
HEREFE 428,647 1,183 429,830

The interests of land use right are located in the PRC. The Group also leases
a property in Hong Kong. The rental agreement is made for a fixed period of 3
years and does not impose any restriction or covenant.

The total cash flow for leases for the year ended 31 December 2020
was RMB50,835,000, which included the payment for (i) the acquisition
of land use right and (i) the security deposit for land auction in the PRC.
The total cash flow for leases for year ended 31 December 2019 was
RMB175,268,000, which included the payment of deposit for the acquisition
of land use right in the PRC.

CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED PR ZEREREAE

3t {5 AR M B M 2 L TS P o AN EE TR Y
EEBEE-—EYE -BEHRREERR
513 REA= > W M EAIPRFI S 25k o

BEZZF+_A=+—HILFE"
HENRSREIEA ARES0,835,000
7T B3 (i) IR 8 - 3 155 R AR R IE R (i) R R
ERE LN REEHRE - HEZS—N
E+ZB=1+—HIEFE HENREER
4BEEA NR%£175,268,0007T » 6115 Wi BE
FRE M E PR REE SRR IE
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Investments in equities 18
Financial asset at FVPL BATFEFAEBEGRZEHEE
- Unlisted equity —JE LR HE

RiERE
2020 2019
—EEH —EF-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMF T ARBTT
1,940 -

In March 2020, the Group has subscribed capital contribution of
RMB2,000,000 to Tiangong Biotechnology (Tianjin) Limited (K T4
Bl (K2) AIRAF) (“Tiangong”), which is an independent third party
not connected with the Group or a connected person (as defined under
the Listing Rules) of the Company. Tiangong has registered capital of
RMB100,000,000, of which 10% is held by the Group. The principal activities
of Tiangong are to carry out research and development of corn derivatives
and transfer its research outcomes to market. Tiangong is a private company.
The Group has neither control nor significant influence over Tiangong.

A ZETEF=AAEEEAXIEY
B (X2 BRARE (TRI)) RBHEEA
K #2,000,00070 > K L4 M A& B 5k
AABRMEAL (EER LHHRA) WE
FENBIE = RIMNEMERBA
FX #100,000,0007T > & H10%H 7 £ &
FHE RINTEXEBRMEBRRITEE
I EA SR REM TS R TEALE
AE o AEEHKRIT U BZEGETEELX
FE e

2020

—E-EF

RMB’000

AR®F

At 1 January w—B—H -
Purchases BE 2,000
Total unrealised loss recognised in profit or loss  RiB& AR 2 R IREEIE4E28 (60)
At 31 December R+=-B=+—H 1,940
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20

10() CcHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Inventories 19 =&
2020 2019
—EZ%HF “Z2—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBFIT
Raw materials B 547,167 408,293
Work in progress TR 70,341 42,831
Finished goods BURY MR 193,599 87,653
811,107 538,777
2020 2019
ZECE “ZE—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARFT ARBFIT
Amount of inventories recognised as an expense: BARYNEESREE !
Carrying amount of inventories sold EXEFEENREE 8,210,776 6,273,865
Write down of inventories WoREE - 920
8,210,776 6,274,785
Trade and other receivables 20 B R EMEWKER
2020 2019
ZECE “ZE—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT ARBFT
Trade receivables & 5 WG 210,032 155,904
Less: Loss allowance B IERE (13,845) (13,845)
196,187 142,059
Bank acceptance bills RITARERE 374,065 493,111
Prepayments and other tax receivables AT TR H A FE U R I8 313,541 204,441
Others Hih 12,545 2,372
896,338 841,983

The carrying amounts of trade and other receivables are mainly denominated

in RMB.

RENBRMIERAIRAR
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Trade and other receivables (Continued) 20

The movement in the loss allowance for trade receivables during the year is
as follows:

B 5 RHEMBEWR (&

FEEEZRRRNBREBEEHNOT :

2020 2019

—EIEHE —E—hF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR%TT AREF T

At 1 January m—Ba—a 13,845 9,698
Amounts written off MitE %8 - (9,630)
Impairment losses recognised BEERERSE - 13,777
At 31 December W+=-B=+—H 13,845 13,845

The Group normally grants credit period ranging from 0 to 150 days (2019: 0
to 150 days) to customers.

At the end of the reporting period, the ageing analysis of trade receivables
based on the invoice date and net of loss allowance is as follows:

FER-RAETEFPNEEHRBRTE

—BA+B (CE—hE
H) R

RIRE I > B 5 IR

T EE-JAT

RIFEEAHK

B RBHERIEREDTNT

2020 2019
=% —E-NE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR¥FT AREEFT
0 - 30 days TE=+H 153,344 125,634
31 - 60 days =+—ZE+H 32,072 11,400
61 - 90 days ANtT—ZEh+H 6,248 2,274
Over 90 days A+BMUE 4,523 2,751
196,187 142,059

At the end of the reporting period, the bank acceptance bills consist of: R|REAFR BVITERRBERIE
2020 2019
TECEHF “E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AREFT AREFT
Bills on hand FEERE 152,040 228,344
Endorsed bills HERRE 171,266 176,682
Discounted bills (note 27) BEIRE R (F5E27) 50,759 88,085
374,065 493,111
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20 Trade and other receivables (Continued)

The bank acceptance bills are normally with maturity period of 180 days
(2019: 180 days). There is no recent history of default on bank acceptance
bills.

As at 31 December 2020, bank acceptance bills of RMB4,256,000 (2019:
RMB4,100,000) (note 29) were pledged to banks for securing bills payables.

21 Security deposit for land auction

The amount of RMB10,401,000 was paid to the Natural Resources and
Planning Administration of Shouguang Municipality as a security deposit for
an online land auction held in February 2021. In March 2021, the Group has
successfully bidden a piece of land with an area of approximately 67,621
square metres. The total land premium for this land is RMB27,190,000 and
this security deposit will be used to set off the land premium.

22 Derivative financial instruments
The derivative financial instruments represented outstanding cornstarch

futures as at the end of reporting period. The futures are not in any part of
hedging relationship.

1()2 CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED BRI AIRAT

20

21

22

B7 REMBWR (&

RTARRE—RIPHRA—ENTH
(ZZ2—NF: —BNTH) - RITEAR
SR B A EC 8 o

3

RIZZEZZEE+ZRA=+—H AR
#4,256,000c (ZE—NE: ARK
4,100,0007t) IR1T A R E#R ([5E29) B
KR FIRIT  (ERRA BRI

HE D MBREENRIE

ENSEATERAERNREBZEEA
K #510,401,000cERN 2 _—F_8
BTWER LIRS T HNRBERIE R
T =R AEBERIRE—IELY
67,621 75 K B9 £ 3 o 3% 30 48 + 3 ik
A AR 127,190,0007t ° A& RFEEHNIE
BRRIEEZ T tEE-

TESMIA
TESBMTRERREERRTANE

KB HAE - IE R B PR R ER
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23 Pledged bank deposits, fixed deposits, cash and cash 23
equivalents and other cash flow information

(a)

Pledged bank deposits, fixed deposits and cash and

ERPIRITER  EHEFER BT
ERBEEFEVMRAEMBRERE

#

(a)

EEFIRITER  ERER

cash equivalents RRERREEEY
2020 2019
—EEE —F-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBTT AREFTT
Pledged bank deposits BIRIFIRITER 4,353 5,669
Fixed deposits EHITER - 260,000

Cash and cash equivalents RERASEEY

— Cash at bank and on hand —SRITARFHERE 341,632 185,357
Total st 345,985 451,026

As at 31 December 2020, deposits of RMB342,391,000 (2019:
RMB449,277,000) were placed with banks in the PRC. Remittance of
these funds out of the PRC is subject to the rules and regulations of
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC government.

At 31 December 2020 and 2019, the pledged bank deposits were
pledged to a bank for securing bills payable (note 29).

RWZEZZEHF+"_B=+—H>
AR #342,391,00070 (ZZE—A,
£ 1 AR%449,277,0007T) B971F
ML ERRRENRIT - ZE
BEEHPEEBEZRR A EET
NE MRV SN EE B AR A R ARG 0

RIZZIZERZZT—NFE+Z
A=+—8 > BEFETENRT
T IRITIEA B ZHRVIRR
(HI5£E29) ©
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104 CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

Pledged bank deposits, fixed deposits, cash and cash

equivalents and other cash flow information (Continuead)

(b)

BIRFIRITER  EHEMR ]
ERBEEEFBYREMB LR

Reconciliation of profit before tax to cash generated (b) PRI A A B EE IR
from operations B R
2020 2019
ZEIEE —Z—-hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT ARBFT
Profit before income tax FREF1SIATH)E 271,238 123,271
Adjustments for: KAELTIER
Finance income RMEWA (15,084) (19,540)
Finance expenses MEEA 5,346 1,661
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment ¥R B HITE 241,313 171,446
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEEINE 9,701 7,595
Loss/(gain) on disposals of property, plant and H &Y% « = K& H
equipment Z K51, () 1,231 (12,570)
Amortisation of government grants BT /B BV i1 (58,821) (56,981)
Accounts payable written back O (3,996) -
Impairment of trade receivables B 5 EINERE - 13,777
Impairment of inventories EFERE - 920
Fair value loss on derivative financial MEEMI A AFERSIE
instruments 341 -
Fair value loss on equity securities RS SFZ AT EEIE 60 -
Changes in working capital: EEESEH .
Increase in inventories FEEM (272,330) (129,875)
Increase in trade and other receivables B 5 K E AhFE W R (54,355) (393,369)
(Decrease)/increase in trade and B 5 R EHAES R
other payables Crizl) /#8m (14,826) 98,824
Increase in advances from customers ERBIIEM 159,147 59,081
Cash generated from/(used in) operations KeEEE S (ER) MRS 268,965 (135,760)
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23

(c)

Pledged bank deposits, fixed deposits, cash and cash 23 CEIEHRITER - THEMR R
equivalents and other cash flow information (Continued) ERREEEYREMRERE
¥ (&
Reconciliation of liabilities from financing activities (c) MEEHFIELEERBRINHI
The reconciliation of liabilities arising from financing activities is as MEFBMELEBENHERT
follows: T
Employee
Bank Lease housing Government
borrowings liabilities deposits loan
TR HEEE AIRER#ES BFER
RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETFT ARETFR ARETFR AREFR
At 1 January 2019 RZE-hE-B—H - 537 23,768 4,432
Cash flows: RERE .
Payment of lease liabiliies RESEIR - (619) - -
Payment of interest on lease liabilties RESENENN - (18) - -
Repayment of employee housing deposits BEEIEERES - - @27 -
Repayment of government loan BEBNER - - - (4,432)
Proceeds of bank borrowings BITBIEIEN 151,354 - - -
Other changes: Hiti2E)
New lease HHE - 1,913 - -
Interest on lease liabilties REaEHNE - 18 - -
At 31 December 2019 and RZE-hE+ZA=+-H
1 January 2020 k=Z-FF¥—HF—H 151,354 1,835 23,741 -
Cash flows: HERe:
Payment of lease liabiliies HESEAR - (739) - -
Payment of interest on lease liabilities REBENENH - (39) - -
Proceeds of bank borrowings RITERMER 193,000 - - -
Repayment of bank borrowings BERETER (217,505) - - -
Other changes: Hits .
Interest on lease liabilties HESRTE - 39 - -
At 31 December 2020 RZEZZE+-A=+-H 126,849 1,100 23,741 -
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24  Share capital 24
Authorised: ERE
Number of shares anE 4=
At 31 December 2019 and 2020 RZE—hEFKk

TECEZFE+"HA=+—H

g s

2020 2019
—E-BF —E—-NEF

10,000,000,000 10,000,000,000

Issued and fully paid: BEITRERE

Number of shares & B

At 1 January W—HB—H 5,995,892,043 5,995,892,043
Share buy-backs LIRS (1,760,000) -
At 31 December W+B=+—H 5,994,132,043 5,995,892,043
Equivalent nominal value of TakERmE (AREFT

ordinary shares (RMB’000)

532,500 532,656

The number of authorised share capital of the Company is comprised of
10,000,000,000 ordinary shares with a par value of HK$0.10 each.

During the year ended 31 December 2020, the Company bought back its
own ordinary shares on the Stock Exchange as follows:

XABHFEEREHEE S E
10,000,000,0000% & & E1E0.10/8 7T HY &
Ehg o

RBEEZZ-ZF+-_RB=+—HLHF
B AR RBMRAER AT ERNT

Price per share

Month of Number ke Aggregate
buy-back of shares Highest Lowest price paid
BER % 1 &E 1541 =& BIT4AERE
HK$ HK$ HK$’000

BT BT FHET

September hA 235,000 0.150 0.148 35
October +A 200,000 0.134 0.134 27
November +—A 1,325,000 0.131 0.127 171
233

The buy-backs of shares was governed by Companies Law of the
Cayman Islands and the Articles of Association of the Company. The total
consideration of HK$233,000 (equivalent to RMB203,000) paid for the
share buy-backs resulted in the decrease in the Company’s share capital of
RMB156,000 and retained earnings of RMB47,000 respectively.

106 CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED BRI AIRAT

BORNHEHEHBE A EAKREARAT
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25

Deferred taxation 25 IRERIE
(a) Deferred tax assets and liabilities recognised (a) ERRNIEEREEERE
&
The components and movement of net deferred tax assets are as IRIEFR T E A T E VAR P BB 1D K
follows: EEWMT
Depreciation
Impairment allowances PRC
of property, in excess of dividend
plantand  Government the related  withholding
equipment grants Tax losses  depreciation tax Total
et
" -BE &R TERE
RgRfEAE B EAE] ] ERE bt ED

(b)

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARBTR  AR®TR  ARBTT ARETT ARETR  ARETR

Deferred tax arising from: REUTSBNELRE
At 1 January 2019 RZE-nE-A-R 2,052 75,905 - (19,944) (4,000) 54,013
(Charged)/credited to & (05 /3t A
profit or loss (note 12) (HizE12) (75) (327) 1,880 (14,160) - (12,682)
At 31 December 2019 and RIZ2-NE+ZB=1+—H
1 January 2020 RZEB-F£E-F-H 1,977 75,578 1,880 (34,104) (4,000) 41,331
Charged to profit or loss (note 12) RBEIRE (512) (70) (18,255) (1,880) (17,207) (3,000) (35,412)
At 31 December 2020 RIBZZE+ZB=1+—8 1,907 62,323 - (51,311) (7,000) 5919
The deferred tax assets/(liabilities) recognised in the consolidated & BB B AR50 3R P e 5B RY R T
statement of financial position is as follows: RELGE,/ (BEWNT:
2020 2019
ZEIEHE “Z—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARB T ARETT
Deferred tax assets IRIEFRIBE = 64,230 79,435
Deferred tax liabilities RIERIBEE (58,311) (38,104)
5,919 41,331
Deferred tax liabilities not recognised (b) KREIDHWEEREAR
Deferred tax liabilities in respect of the PRC dividend withholding HRARBEREPEMNE R
tax relating to certain undistributed profits of the Company’s PRC BYRR BBER > Bt B e
subsidiaries were not recognised as the Company controls the BRrIETHRDIKF BEBHN
dividend policy of these subsidiaries. Based on the assessment E S FE IR R SRR IE TR 1E
made by the management as at the end of the reporting period, it BE-REEEEBNBREHRAAN
was determined that the undistributed profits of RMB1,640,734,000 EH BT 2B A AT H
(2019: RMB1,518,025,000) of the Company’s PRC subsidiaries MEBARNKRDIKFEARE
would not be distributed in the foreseeable future. 1,640,734,0007c (ZE—hHE: A
R %1,518,025,00070) A&7 A
R RIER DK
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26 Lease liabilities 26 THE&E

The following table shows the remaining contractual maturities of the Group’s TRITAEREEGENRSHERN

108 CHINA STARCH HOLDINGS LIMITED

lease liabilities at the end of the reporting period.

FIF SRR -

2020 2019

—E_EHE ZE-NE

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR¥F AR#FT

Total lease liabilities HEaEMREE 1,100 1,835
Analysed as: P

Current liabilities mEEE 603 617

Non-current liabilities el IR =R = 497 1,218

1,100 1,835

The analysis of expense items in relation to leases recognised in profit or loss

REmAFEDEERBNBAZEE D

is as follows: W
2020 2019
—ECEF —Z—hEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREFT
Interest on lease liabilities (note 8) mHEaEn s (fiFs) 39 18
Expense relating to short-term leases BREHHENRES 662 543
Expense relating to low-value assets BREEEEENMS 10 1
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28

RS ER AR I T

Borrowings 27 B
2020 2019
—EZE® “EB-NF
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARBF T ARETFT

Bank borrowings IRITER

- Secured —FigHE 76,849 115,354
- Unsecured — K 50,000 36,000
126,849 151,354

The Group discounted bills receivable of RMB50,759,000 (2019:
RMB88,085,000) to banks in exchange for cash as at 31 December
2020. The bank borrowing of RMB26,090,000 (2019: RMB27,269,000)
(denominated in HK$) was secured by a pledged bank deposit provided by
Merry Boom (the controlling shareholder of the Company).

All bank borrowings were repayable within one year.

The effective interest rates of bank borrowings per annum at the end of
reporting period were as follows:

RIEZEF+-A=+—H > ~EEK
B ARKS50,759,0007T (ZE—NF A
EE #588,085,0007T) FEWZE FIRIT U
BIZE o AR %626,090,0007 0 IRIT AR
(ZE—h%F: AR#27,269,00078) (ML
BrostE) HIBE (R ABEKRKR) RE
B BRI IRITERIEIEIF o

PRAESRITIERAR —EWEE-
RBRERRNBTERBREMNERLOT :
2020 2019
—EEFE —E-NEF

Bank borrowings RITE

— Secured — K 1.13% - 3.12% 2.5% - 2.95%
— Unsecured — I 3.65% - 4.35% 4.35%

Deferred income 28 IRIEWA
2020 2019
ZEIEE —E—hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARETT ARET T
At 1 January w—HA—H 349,074 342,142
Additions for the year EEEN 12,790 63,913
Amortisation for the year (note 6) FEEH (zk6) (58,821) (56,981)
At 31 December R+ZB=+—H 303,043 349,074

Deferred income mainly represents government grants received from
Shouguang City Finance Bureau and Linging City Finance Bureau for
the development of the production complex in Shouguang and Linging
respectively.

FIEWATEERNENKREBEERG
GEEEMMO A BESEH M BB KRB
B BUR IS BB A B ©
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Trade and other payables 29 EBIKRHEMEMR
2020 2019
ZEZEE —Z—hE
RMB’000 RMB’000
ARMFT ARBFT
Trade payables =7 ) NEAN 180,991 129,606
Bills payables eI =% 8,574 9,747
Total trade and bills payables BRI B REAERE 189,565 139,353
Payable for construction and equipment BERRERATR 219,969 345,319
Accrued expenses i 71,518 135,470
Payroll and welfare payables FES TE R @F 26,949 33,035
Other tax payables HpELRIE 13,156 16,559
Earnest money BHRES 15,429 12,196
Sales commission HEMS 4,576 4,378
Others Hih 6,580 5,604
547,742 691,914

As at 31 December 2020, bills payables are secured by bank acceptance
bills of RMB4,256,000 (2019: RMB4,100,000) (note 20) and bank deposits of
RMB4,353,000 (2019: RMB5,669,000) (note 23(a)).

The following is the ageing analysis for the trade and bills payables based on
invoice date at the end of the reporting period:

NI ZEE+ZRA=+—H EBOEE
DRI R #4,256,0007 (ZB—H4E :
AR 14,100,0007t) (FizE20) BYSRTIT A&
=& AR K4,353,00070 (ZZE—A
£ 1 AR 5,669,0007T) (Fi5E23(a)) IR

ITERIEER -

UTRREMKREZ BN RKRENRE

IR R HERERE D

2020 2019
—EBF —E—-NEF

RMB’000 RMB’000

AR®FT ARBFT

0 - 60 days TEX+H 123,630 94,293
61 — 90 days ANt—ZhA+H 31,355 10,098
Over 90 days A+BEMUE 34,580 34,962
189,565 139,353

The average credit period on purchases is 80 days (2019: 80 days). The
Group has financial risk management policies in place to ensure that all
payables are paid within the credit time frame.

The carrying amounts of trade and other payables are mainly denominated in

RMB.
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31

32

33

Advances from customers 30 ERBM
Revenue recognised that was included in advances from customers at the REPVHABTEREANEEI WA A
beginning of the year was RMB171,596,000 (2019: RMB112,457,000). R 15171,596,0007T (ZE—NF : AR
112,457,0007T) °
Employee housing deposits 31 BIEEMRSES:
Employee housing deposits are carried at amortised cost. BIRBRREBSREHMATER
The Group offers residential accommodation to the staff with the aim of AEERETREFRE BEESCEITER
promoting long service with the Group. Staff are required to place housing EHREAEE -ETHERAEMEERK
deposits to the Group for the use of such accommodation. The employee BRAEEGNEEREE - BLIERR
housing deposits are interest-free, unsecured and repayable upon the return FELREEBERKNREIREEIRE
of the staff quarters by the employee or termination of employment. SRKILEARRIE
Commitments 32 KiE
Significant capital expenditure contracted for at the end of the year but not RAFEGERFEITNEREREAR
recognised as liabilities is as follows: HNERERBEZNT :
2020 2019
BT —Z—nF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT AREBTT
Capital contribution HE 78,000 -
Property, plant and equipment L EN Y=Y 27,790 168,474
Share-based payment transactions 33 URMIZEARENRS

The Company’s share option scheme (the “Share Option Scheme”) was
adopted on 19 May 2017 for the purpose of providing incentives or rewards
to directors, employees and other eligible persons. The Share Option Scheme
will remain in force for a period of ten years commencing on the date on
which the Share Option Scheme is adopted. The maximum number of shares
which may be issued upon the exercise of all outstanding options granted
and yet to be exercised under the Share Option Scheme and any other share
option scheme adopted by the Company must not in aggregate exceed 30%
of issued capital of the Company from time to time.

As at 31 December 2020 and 2019, no options have been granted under the
Share Option Scheme.
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35
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Related party transactions 34 [EARS
Save for the disclosure in note 27, the related party transactions including FRICMIZ27TRRIREE N BRERAEEEE
remuneration for key management personnel of the Group are as follows: BIEEAEHFMNNEELAZZOT
2020 2019
—EZEE “E-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR%FT AEREBFIT
Short-term benefits S HRTER 1,750 1,750
Pension scheme contributions BIRESTEIHRR 134 150
1,884 1,900
Statement of financial position of the Company 35 AAFMEMBRRR
2020 2019
—ETEF ZE-NEF
RMB’000 RMB’000
AR®FT ARBFT
ASSETS BE
Non-current asset EREBEE
Investments in subsidiaries RHBABNKRE 159,378 159,378
Current assets REEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries N NS 527,037 527,871
Prepayments SELNER 378 402
Cash and cash equivalents RERIREEEY 3,299 1,557
530,714 529,830
Total assets BEEHEE 690,092 689,208
EQUITY e
Equity attributable to owners of the Company AT #EE AEGEDS
Share capital [IEZiN 532,500 532,656
Reserves (note) B (MIsD) 131,352 128,927
Total equity e G 663,852 661,583
LIABILITIES af&
Current liabilities mEaE
Bank borrowings RITER 26,090 27,269
Accrued expense FESTRES 150 356
Total liabilities I=REEE 26,240 27,625
Total equity and liabilities EamkaBELE 690,092 689,208
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35 Statement of financial position of the Company 35 EAFMBBRAR &
(Continued)
Note:  Movement of the reserves of the Company st . AABREEE
(Accumulated
losses)/
Share Special Capital retained
premium reserve reserve profit Total
(R3tEs8) /
R EE RIS BRGE REBHEA @t

RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000 RMB'000
ARETR  ARETR  ARBTR ARETRT ARBTR

At 1 January 2019 R-E-nE—F-R 39,369 108,651 16,730 (8,459) 156,291
Prolfit for the year REEEF - - - 35,928 35,928
2018 final dividend “E-\ERERE (39,369) - - (23.929) (63,292)

At 31 December 2019 and 1 January 2020 RIE-AF+ZA=+-Hk

- %E-F-H - 108,651 16,730 3,546 128,927
Share buy-backs B - - - (47) (47)
Profit for the year KEEHR - - - 36,322 36,322
2019 final dividend “E-NERBRE - - - (33,850) (33,850)
At 31 December 2020 RZ2Z2F+°A=+—-H - 108,651 16,730 5,971 131,352
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L FEMBHEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

ZEZEF  ZE-AE ZE-N\E ZZ—tE ZE-RE

Operating results e
(RMB’000) (AE¥F )
Revenue WA 8,892,261 6,750,401 5,073,489 4,694,541 4,397,844
Gross profit E# 559,775 353,004 443,164 619,543 497,095
Operating profits =yl 261,500 105,392 271,232 496,453 292,656
Profit for the year REERS 207,039 98,096 238,035 304,061 219,219
Profit attributable to shareholders BREayilbe 190,120 96,847 230,897 388,167 213,682
Assets and Liabilities BERERE
(RMB’000) (N5 o)

Total assets waE 4,567,492 4,424,974 4,212,055 3,538,106 2,904,392
Total liabilities maE 1,433,359 1,463,827 1,285,712 791,083 602,090
Non-controlling interests P 156,826 139,907 138,668 131,520 35,626
Shareholder’s equity R 2,977,307 2,821,240 2,787,685 2,615,503 2,266,676
Per share data sk
Net assets per share (RMB) SRFEE (AR 0.52 0.49 0.49 0.46 0.38
Earnings per share (RMB cents) SREM ARES) 3.17 1.62 3.85 6.47 3.56
Dividends per share (HK$ cents) SRES (B 0.90 0.62 1.20 1.20 0.75
Dividend payout ratio KB 28.4% 34.3% 27.3% 15.0% 18.8%
Share price as at the year ended (HK$) FERRE (B 0.156 0.143 0.169 0.305 0.170
Note: 5T -

The above summary does not form part of the audited consolidated financial statements.
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